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Financial Highlights Bf i =

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
BE-T——F HE_T—ZF
+=A=+-8 +=A + =i
LtHEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYETT BETT
Turnover [FE 2] 206,176 216,091
Profit from operations RESEA 74,922 85,581
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of AQ B RERE ABGET
the Company 70,065 69,259
Total assets MEE 575,598 562,369
Net assets BEE 340,806 336,281
Dividend per share (HK cents) BREE (GEW)
Interim FRHEARR B 2.8 25
Proposed final BORAHR B 6.1 6.3
Earnings per share (HK cents) BRER B
Basic FHOR 9.1 9.0
Diluted e 9.0 8.9
Financial ratios [ 30
Net profit margin (Note 1) TR (aFD) 34.0% 32.1%
Effective tax rate (Note 2) BB (H72) 13.2% 15.1%
Current ratio (Note 3) TRENLL R (B15£3) 1.83 1.89
Quick ratio (Note 4) mENLL KR (H7E4) 1.83 1.89
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2011 2010
R=—T——F KT —TF
+=A=+-—-AH TRl
000 '000
FB FAR
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares BITRMEEER
As at 31 December i A= 782,546 778,606
Weighted average number of shares (basic) R+=ZA=1+—BERTERERN
outstanding ordinary shares at 31 December INRESE g BB (FEA) 765,575 765,706

Note 1  Net profit margin = profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company/ Bist]l  ESEFIE = A REIRIER BN 5 S2sE

turnover
Note 2 Effective tax rate = taxation/profit before taxation Hizt2 g@%ﬁ$:ﬁ5§/@ﬁﬁ§m§ﬂ
Note 3 Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities B33 REHE = rEHEE R E

Note 4 Quick ratio = current assets minus inventory/current liabilities Wistd BB R=GBEERFE GHEE
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Chairman’s Statement EEREE

Dear Shareholders,

2011 was a turbulent year for those involved with world trade: two natural
disasters, the earth quake in Japan in the first half of the year and the flooding
in Thailand in the second half of the year, caused serious supply disruptions,
particularly to parts essential to the electronics industry. In addition, the dispute
in Congress regarding the US debt limit and the Euro-zone sovereign debt
crisis, which is still being played out, dampened economic sentiment. These
affected Hong Kong's external trade, with the overall Government Electronic
Trading Services (“GETS”) market, our key revenue source, declining by over
4% during the year. As a result, our overall turnover for the year declined by
4.6%, from HK$216 million in 2010 to HK$206 million in 2011.

Against such a back drop, | am, therefore, pleased to report a pre-tax profit of
HK$81 million for the year. This compares very favourably with the HK$81.6
million achieved a year earlier as the 2010 result included exceptional items
amounting to over HK$12 million. Profit attributable to equity shareholders
amounted to HK$70 million, which, although only marginally higher than the
HK$69 million achieved a year earlier, is a 24% year-on-year improvement if
you discount the exceptional items.

The result partly reflects our efforts at controlling costs, with our net margin
exclusive of the exceptional items improving from 26.3% to 34.2%, despite a
4% increase in our staff bill. It also partly reflects a much better performance
from our China investments. Operating costs, net of staff costs and
depreciation, during the year declined significantly, by nearly 31%, to HK$31
million. Total costs for the year thus came to HK$139.1 million, an 8% decline
when compared with last year.

In terms of our operations, our core GETS suffered from the weak economic
sentiments in Hong Kong’s major markets and from the severe competition.
We were, however, able to bridge part of the gap by the successful launch of
our Road Cargo System (“ROCARS”) solution in November.

Business at our two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Digital Trade and
Transportation Network Limited (“DTTNCo”) and Digi-Sign Certification
Services Limited (“Digi-Sign”), maintained their pace of development.
Operational income from DTTN more than doubled when compared with
the previous year. Moreover, under our revised China strategy, three DTTN
Gateways were deployed in China, with another three planned for 2012.
Discussions are being held with our various partners in the PRC to accelerate
the rate of deployment to enable us to build a network of Digital Trade and
Transportation Network (“DTTN”) hubs covering different geographic regions
in the China market over a three-year time frame.

Operations at Digi-Sign also progressed satisfactorily, despite the delay
in finalizing the HK$38 million e-banking security device service contract
announced earlier. This will now only come on stream towards the end of
the first quarter of 2012. During the year, similar contracts, albeit on a much
smaller scale, with a number of other banks were concluded. As these

BBRURR -

HRREBRIRESHA LR — 2 ——F2FmRENE
B FREBRERERAKL AR EFFHRRME - #
METFFOREKL  BREEHERE - LHEHE
FAENETEDTH o o EEEEFREREEMEZ
F o MERTEABEGEERESDERMAR - RSTERA
EEME - FEERZFE TESNHINES - DR
EENEZRARRBFETE SR ([GETS ) BETS
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#216,000,0007T * k4 & = T — — 4 Y7 # 206,000,000
JC T BE4.6% ©

BATSEFBRETIAMEAE - BLAMENE - RNEEFA
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Chairman’s Statement EEREE

contracts have a rolling three-year life cycle, additional business initiatives are
being made to ensure a more even recurrent revenue stream for Digi-Sign. |
am confident that some, if not all, of these will come to fruition over the next
two years, ensuring rapid profit growth at Digi-Sign for the medium term.

As | said earlier, our investments in China returned a much improved
performance during the year: from a net loss of HK$4 million posted for 2010
to a net gain of HK$5.8 million for this year.

More specifically, business at Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science &
Technology Service Company Limited (“Nanfang”) was equally affected by the
slowdown in China’s external trade. As a result, our share of Nanfang’s profits
decreased slightly from HK$1.3 million in 2010 to HK$1.2 million in 2011. As
| forecasted last year, the data centre operated by China International Data
Systems Company Limited began returning a profit this year, with our share of
profits amounting to HK$7 million. Although our two other PRC investments
during the second half of 2011 suffered some minor losses, this was due
mainly to the fact that they are still at the start-up phase, having only recently
commenced operations.

| am also pleased to report that your Board has resolved to adopt each and
every single recommendation suggested by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong following its review of the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
and Associated Listing Rules last year. This will ensure that our standard of
corporate governance will be equal to the best in Hong Kong.

Looking ahead to 2012, a further slow down in the global economy is expected,
with all our main markets, including China, affected. As markets shrink,
competition will become even more cut-throat in the battle for survival. We will,
therefore, need to re-double our effort to protect the revenue from our core
GETS services. With the additional income from our new ROCARS services,
the rolling out of Digi-Sign’s e-banking security device service contracts, the
recently announced Smart Warrant Card project for the Hong Kong Police and
a number of new business initiatives close to fruition, | remain very confident
of our performance in 2012. |, therefore, have no hesitation in recommending
another 100% payout of our profits for 2011. This means a final dividend of
HK 6.1 cents per share, which, together with the interim dividend of HK 2.8
cents, will give a total 2011 dividend of HK 8.9 cents, slightly higher than the
HK 8.8 cents last year.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow board members for their
continued support and to express my gratitude to the staff at Tradelink for their
hard work during the past year.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry,SBS., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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General

2011 was a challenging year for the Management Team at Tradelink. After
the turnaround achieved in 2010, the operating environment turned sour in
2011, with two natural disasters, the tsunami in Japan at the beginning of the
year and the flooding in Thailand during the second half of the year, seriously
disrupting the supply chain in this part of the world. These, together with the
gyrations in the financial markets, caused first by the hiatus over the US debt
limits and second by the sovereign debt crisis which is still being played out
in Europe, dampened the world trade scene, which remains central to our
performance. The resulting shrinkage in Hong Kong's GETS market, by about
4% year-on-year, largely put paid to our hopes of another stellar performance
year.

The ill-winds blowing across the financial markets had another indirect effect
on us, more specifically on our treasury operations. In view of the heightening
of risks in the bond market, the Board decided at the end of the first quarter
of 2011 to switch our portfolio of long-term bonds to investment grade bonds
with @ much shorter maturity. While this was laudably prudent, it nevertheless
meant that we were unable to repeat the exceptional gain of over HK$10
million achieved from our treasury operations in 2010. The much lower yields
for short-term investment grades also affected our interest income for the year.

Our answer to a shrinking GETS market and some erosion of market share
was stringent cost control and a further efficiency increase of our operation.
Furthermore we have reinforced the growth strategy for DTTN and Digi-Sign.
In both businesses we won the trust of new big customers and introduced
new services to them. For reasons beyond our control the profits from these
new initiatives will only be booked in 2012 and thereafter. Thanks to savings
from better cost controls and much improved performance in our China
investments, we were able eventually to match the bottom line we achieved for
2010 despite the 4.6% decline in turnover, higher staff costs and the absence
of any exceptional gains this year from our treasury operations. The Team,
however, takes comfort from the fact that the various project delays can only
mean a much better performance for 2012.

HNEHBNEREBORN T ——FRFTMEN —
FoRERFRN_Z-ZFRERY - 0T ——F#
Z o FRARHBEMARL - FRFOHBRERE - &if
ETNEFOREKL - BRERE T RANOHEERE - it £
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EESDBMARNEMNBEEE - DAMIBERRESIE
K LEMAROEBEENRLBHRZITE - HMINEE
GETSTISFEILZE4R - IRF THH4% - MERERRBES
—FHBEENTEL -

SRTSEVOAR - HRMABERENTE - ERANTH
RAEWKERD - EREFTSRBTR  EFER T ——
FHEFERRERFERISENRBEFURAFHEENRE
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BERNFEENLEBENRLA6%  BEIMX LT BKKREAE
REEEHS IR - BIFEANRNATMNEERT ZT—ZT 4K
F o EREBREIRENRZEBIEE OER - §AKM
FE-T——FHREEMNES -
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Business Review

Tradelink/DTTN

As mentioned above, our core business of providing front-end GETS suffered
as a result of the 4% shrinkage in the overall market. Added to the intense
competition from the other two service providers, we recorded a decline of
some 8% in this area when compared with 2010.

Fortunately, mandatory use of the Customs & Excise Department’s (“Customs”)
ROCARS starting from 17 November 2011 provided a mini-windfall. In the run-
up to, and immediately after, mandatory usage, the number of calls handled
by Tradelink, as the agent appointed by Customs to provide call centre services
on behalf of Government, increased sharply, with the total number of calls in
the last 3 months in 2011 almost double that for the first 9 months of the year.
Consequentially, there was a significant increase in service charges received
from Customs. In addition, leveraging on our IT and operational infrastructure,
we developed a comprehensive range of user-friendly ROCARS solutions to
meet the needs of shippers and truckers. With positive market response, we
received continuous customer support and new subscriptions despite starting
to levy charges for the service in December 2011. We are hopeful that this will
represent a new revenue stream for us.

During the year, we continued to make steady progress in developing DTTN.
Revenue from our DTTN operations more than doubled year-on-year. With
a number of new projects well underway, transaction levels should increase
further in 2012. The collaboration with Cathay Pacific Airways and Global
Logistics System (HK) Company Limited in May 2011 utilizing DTTN to pilot
the world’s first 100% paperless e-freight project, involving a cargo shipment
from Hong Kong to Munich via Frankfurt, laid the foundations for closer co-
operation with Cathay Pacific. We are currently exploring ways and means
of using DTTN to develop a “freight forwarder community platform” for
conducting business amongst our clients.

Our revised strategy for deploying DTTN in China was launched successfully
during the year: three DTTN Gateways were set up with different strategic
partners: one in Xiamen, one in Shanghai and one in Shenzhen. Together with
the two at our own offices in Beijing and Guangzhou, the current deployment
gives us a good geographic coverage of the market. Discussions currently
in train should result in another three such Gateways being set up in China
during 2012. This augurs well for our plan to deploy DTTN Gateways covering
the major strategic locations in the China market over the next three years.

The Tradelink/DTTN platforms integration initiative was essentially completed
by the end of the year and migration of DTTN clients to the new integrated
platform should be completed by the end of the first quarter of 2012. Once
completed, the team will focus on completing the development work for the
“Tradelink Box”, a suite of programmes spanning the whole supply chain as
part of our effort to renew our technology to better serve our clients.

OB

ERE BRESERRE
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Business Review (continued)

Digi-Sign

As mentioned above, Digi-Sign’s new business roll-out experienced some
delays which were beyond the control of the team. However, our planned
expansion into the e-banking security market continued apace. Apart from
concluding security token services contracts, albeit at a much smaller
scale, with two other banks, preparatory work for the proposed common
authentication scheme progressed satisfactorily. We received the go-ahead
from the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) recently and anticipate
service roll-out towards the end of 2012. As well, the team continued its
efforts to complete work on meeting the HKMA's guidelines on the security
solution necessary to enable accessing “high risk” banking services over
mobile devices. We are confident that our proposed solution will address both
regulatory and client concerns in this field, opening up new opportunities for
further business growth.

During the year, Digi-Sign also completed work on upgrading its systems to
support the issuance of 2048 bit digital certificates to bring the security of its
services to current international standards. R&D work on identifying further
business opportunities in the e-banking security market also continued.

China

As also mentioned earlier, our three original China investments returned a
much improved performance last year, turning a loss of HK$4 million in 2010
to a gain of HK$5.8 million in 2011.

As foreshadowed in our Interim Report this year, we entered into two additional
joint ventures with strategic partners, investing RMB9.4 million, during the
course of the year to improve our ability to penetrate the China market more
efficiently and effectively.

Financial Review

The Group’s turnover for the year fell 4.6%, from HK$216.1 million in 2010 to
HK$206.2 million in 2011, due partly to a decline in the overall GETS market
and partly to intense competition. Fortunately, this decline was balanced out
by an 8% decrease in the Group’s operating costs before depreciation, from
HK$130.0 million to HK$119.6 million in 2011, due to better costs control and
lower non-recurrent operating costs. In addition, depreciation charge for 2011,
at HK$19.5 million, was also lower than the previous year by HK$1.4 million.

As a result, the Group’s profit from operations for 2011 came to HK$74.9
million, down 12.5% as compared to 2010. This was due largely to the fact
that the 2010 figures included two one-off other net income items amounting
to over HK$12 million. Excluding such items, the Group’s operating profit for
2011 was actually 2.9% higher than 2010.

The Group’s investments in associates in the PRC returned a much better
performance: from a net loss of HK$4.0 million in 2010 to a net profit of
HK$5.8 million in 2011.

FEEE(R)
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Financial Review (continued)

The profit attributable to equity shareholders for 2011 thus came to HK$70.1
million, a growth of 1.2% as compared to 2010. Again, excluding one-off other
net income, the Group’s net attributable profit for 2011 was nearly 24% higher
than for 2010.

Basic earnings per share for 2011 were HK 9.1 cents, up 1.1% from HK 9.0
cents in 2010.

Liquidity and Financial Position

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had total cash and bank deposits of
HK$148.0 million (31 December 2010: HK$216.0 million). The substantial
reduction in our cash reserves is mainly accounted for by an increasing
of the Group’s investment in corporate bonds, treated as available-for-sale
debt securities, from HK$156.7 million at the end 2010 to HK$225.6 million
as at 31 December 2011. Total assets and net assets of the Group as at
31 December 2011 amounted to HK$575.6 million (31 December 2010:
HK$562.4 million) and HK$340.8 million (31 December 2010: HK$336.3
million) respectively.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had no borrowings (31 December 2010:
Nil).

Capital and Reserves
As at 31 December 2011, the capital and reserves attributable to shareholders
stood at HK$340.8 million, an increase of HK$4.5 million from 2010.

Charges on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has one bank guarantee, in the amount
of HK$2.1 million, to the Government for the due performance of our GETS
[l Contract, which will remain in effect from 1 January 2010 to 31 December
2016. In addition, we have one performance bond, in the amount of HK$0.6
million, for the due performance of the call centre service under ROCARS.
These are secured by a charge over our deposits and are subject to review
annually.

The Group provides a bank guarantee, in the amount of HK$1.2 million, in
respect of a revolving credit facility granted to Telstra Technology Services
(Hong Kong) Limited, an associate of the Group. The guarantee is a continuing
security and may not be released or discharged until the expiration of six
months after payment, discharge or satisfaction in full of the guaranteed
liability.

The Group did not have any other charges on its assets.

St 35 1o B (4D
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Financial Review (continued)

Capital Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2011 not provided for
in the financial statements amounted to HK$0.5 million (31 December 2010:
HK$0.7 million). They are mainly in respect of our hardware platform, software
and computer equipment.

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with strategic business
partners to subscribe for a 24.5% equity interest in JTERH AR AR
AA] (“SCNT”) for a cash consideration of RMB2.45 million and has invested
half of the cash consideration. The Group’s outstanding commitment in respect
of capital investment in SCNT not provided for in the financial statements
amounted to RMB1.225 million.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed 281 staff (2010: 279), of
which 234 work in Hong Kong, 3 are based in Beijing and 44 in Guangzhou.
The related staff costs for the year totaled HK$88.2 million (2010: HK$84.8
million).

The Group’s remuneration policy is that all employees are rewarded on the
basis of market salary levels. In addition to salaries, the Group provides staff
benefits including medical insurance and contribution to staff's mandatory
provident fund. To motivate and reward staff performance, the Group
established a discretionary performance bonus scheme for general staff.

The Company operates two share option schemes and a share award scheme
to reward the performance of employees at the assistant manager grade
and above. Since implementation of the share award scheme in 2009, no
additional options have been granted to employees although options previously
granted remain valid.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

As at 31 December 2011, other than its investments in the PRC incorporated
entities and Reminbi-denominated debt securities, the Group had no foreign
exchange exposure or related hedges.
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Directors

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P., aged 69, was appointed a Director on 19
September 2000. He is also our Chairman. He holds a Bachelor's degree in
Electrical Engineering from the Imperial College, London, the United Kingdom
and a Doctorate from Brown University, the United States. He joined Textile
Alliance Limited (“TAL") in Hong Kong in 1973 and in 1983, was appointed
Managing Director (title changed to Chief Executive since 2010) of TAL Apparel
Limited, which currently employs over 20,000 employees. He was a Director
of The Link Management Limited and of Phillips-Van Heusen Corporation.
He has over 30 years’ experience in the textile and garment industry. He is
actively involved in a number of trade organizations in Hong Kong. He was the
Chairman of the Innovation & Technology Fund (“Textiles Projects”) Vetting
Committee, council member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is
currently the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Garment Manufacturer’s
Association, Honorary Chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong Ltd, board
member of Global Apparel, Footwear & Textile Initiative, Chairman of Hong
Kong Research Institute of Textiles & Apparel Ltd. He is also a council member
of the Vocational Training Council. He was named in the Queen’s birthday
honours list as an Officer of the British Empire (“OBE”) in 1996. He was
appointed a Justice of Peace (“J.P.”) in 1997 and was awarded the Silver
Bauhinia Star (“S.B.S.”) at the Fourth Anniversary of the Establishment of the
HKSAR in 2001.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 62, was appointed a Director on 1
October 2009. He served as an INED of the Company during the period from
2 September 2008 to 13 July 2009. Mr. WU was appointed an Executive
Director and CEO-designate of the Company on 1 October 2009 and assumed
the CEO role on 1 January 2010. He is currently a director of the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited, Digital
Trade and Transportation Network Limited and Up Forward Technology
Limited. Mr. WU is also a director of the following subsidiaries of the Company:
Tradelink (Beijing) Electronic Commerce Limited (Jt REAZBE %ﬂ&ﬁﬁ
T&BRAR), Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (K22 5 BRI AR A
Tradelink (Tianjin) Electronic Commerce Limited (K2 Z{Z5BE -T—?«H?UE
BAT), KEENSERFEAR AT and Guangzhou Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Ltd. (EMENSBETFEHEBRAR]). Mr. WU graduated from
the University of Hong Kong in 1972 and served in the then Government of
Hong Kong until 1989 when he joined the Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”) becoming its Deputy Chairman, Chief Operating Officer and Executive
Director of Intermediaries Supervision Departments from 1995 to 1997. In
1999, Mr. WU joined the China Securities Regulatory Commission (“CSRC”)
and acted as its Advisor until 2001. From April 2001 to July 2002, he served
as a commissioner of the Strategy & Development Committee of CSRC and the
Deputy Chairman of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He subsequently joined
SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and acted as its Chairman (China Region)
until June 2004. Mr. WU continued to act as an independent non-executive
director of SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited until 21 November 2011. He
is currently an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Investment
Limited and Ever Fortune International Holdings Limited (both listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He was an
independent non-executive director of First Mobile Group Holdings Limited
(listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
Stock Code 865) between 31 August 2000 and 2 December 2009.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, aged 42, was appointed an Executive
Director and acting DCEO of the Company on 15 November 2011. Mr.
CHENG holds a Master of Commerce degree in Information Systems from
the University of New South Wales, a Master of Engineering degree from
the University of Sydney, a Bachelor of Engineering degree with Honours
in Electrical Engineering from the University of Sydney and a Bachelor of
Science degree from the University of Sydney. Mr. CHENG is currently a
director of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification
Services Limited and Up Forward Technology Limited. He is also a director
of the following subsidiaries of the Company: Tradelink (Beijing) Electronic
Commerce Limited (At RE 5 BE FREHEARE AR AR, Tianjin Tradelink
Technology Ltd. (KFE 5@EHEBR A A)), Tradelink (Tianjin) Electronic
Commerce Limited (K2EZZBEFRHBERAR), KEEAZBERES
[ /A 7], Guangzhou Tradelink Electronic Commerce Ltd. (BEM & 5B EF
B BRAT]) and BPS Tradelink Logistics Information Systems Ltd. (&M
SEBEAYIRIEBRMARAT]). Mr. CHENG has over 18 years’ experience
in IT-related business, covering internet security, domestic and international
supply chain, logistics and finance. He was a specialist in the consultancy on
the setting up of a Public Key Infrastructure by the Hong Kong Government
and is currently a member of the Advisory Committee on the Code of Practice
for Recognized Certification Authorities of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Government as well as a member of the Expert Review
Panel of Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistics and Supply Chain Management
Enabling Technologies.

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, aged 55, was appointed a Director on 2
September 2008. She joined the Company in 1992. She is currently the Chief
Operations Officer of the Company and a director of the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiaries, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited, Digital Trade
and Transportation Network Limited and Up Forward Technology Limited.
Ms. CHUNG is also a director of the following subsidiaries of the Company:
Tradelink (Beijing) Electronic Commerce Limited Gt R B 5BE FRHY
RIS AR AR, Tianjin Tradelink Technology Ltd. (K28 SiBEHEHARA
7)), Tradelink (Tianjin) Electronic Commerce Limited (K)2E{= 5B T 1
KARRAR]), REEHAZBEHEBRR AT, Guangzhou Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Ltd. (BEMEASBEFEIHER AR and BPS Tradelink
Logistics Information Systems Ltd. (/N Z@BEA D RIELRMERRQR).
She previously served as an Executive Director of the Company from 13 May
2005 to 3 November 2006 and from 9 July 2007 to 27 November 2007
respectively. Ms. CHUNG graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of Science degree in Engineering.
Prior to joining the Company, Ms. CHUNG worked in the then Government of
Hong Kong for over 11 years providing management consultancy services to
government bureaux and departments. Since joining the Company, she has
gained 20 years of solid experience in the e-commerce business with both the
public and private sectors. She has a wealth of diversified experience in the
management of various business aspects of the Company.
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Directors (continued)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, aged 41, was appointed a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 20 April 2011. She graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree, and obtained a Master of
Science degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Ms. TSANG joined
the Hong Kong Government as an Administrative Officer in 1992. She has
since served in various positions within the Government, including Principal
Assistant Secretary for Housing, Associate Director-General for Investment
Promotion, Principal Assistant Secretary (Constitutional and Mainland Affairs)
and Principal Assistant Secretary (Treasury) (Speech), and lately as Principal
Assistant Secretary (Treasury) (Investments).

Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric, aged 58, was appointed a Director on 9 May 2008. He is
the Director of Hongkong International Terminals Limited and Group Executive
Director of Hutchison Port Holdings, both of which are not listed public
companies. Mr. IP is a director of Hyundai Merchant Marine Co. Ltd., which
is listed on the Korea Stock Exchange. He is the Chairman of the Shipping &
Port Operations Group of Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong. He has over 30
years’ management experience in shipping and container terminal fields.

Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael, aged 50, was appointed a Director on 9 May
2008. He is the Managing Director of GCIS Limited. Mr. KIHM has over 20
years of experience in financial management. Prior to founding GCIS Limited,
he had been with Allianz Group for 14 years where he held senior positions
in asset management, mergers & acquisitions and corporate finance. Prior
to joining Allianz, he had worked for 3 years as a consultant in treasury
management. Mr. KIHM has been awarded the CFA charter by CFA Institute,
Charlotteville, USA, a Master’s degree in Management from ESCP-EAP, Paris,
France and Master’s degree in Mathematics from University of UIm, Germany.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAK Hubert, aged 50, was appointed a Director on 21 October 2002.
He is currently Director (Corporate Development) of The Link Management
Limited (“The Link”), the manager of The Link Real Estate Investment Trust,
which he joined in June 2010 and is responsible for the corporate development
function of The Link. Before joining The Link, he was the Group Chief
Operating Officer and Executive Director of CSI Properties Limited. Mr. Hubert
Chak held various senior management positions at PCCW Limited between
1999 and 2007 and was an executive director of Pacific Century Premium
Developments Limited until February 2007. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree and a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical
Engineering from University of Wales (now known as Cardiff University).

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay, aged 69, was appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 September 2009. He was the non-executive
Chairman of the board of directors of the Company from 1998 to 2002. Mr.
Chau graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1967. He served in the
Hong Kong Government from 1967 to 2002. Between 1988 and 2002, Mr.
Chau served in a number of principal official positions in the Government,
including Secretary for Trade and Industry, Secretary for Commerce and
Industry, Secretary for Broadcasting, Culture and Sport, and Secretary for
Health and Welfare. Following his departure from the Government, Mr. Chau
was an independent non-executive director of the Hong Kong Main Board
listed China Life Insurance Company Limited from 2003 to 2009. He has been
an independent non-executive director of the Hong Kong Main Board listed
SJM Holdings Limited since 2008. Mr. Chau was awarded the Gold Bauhinia
Star by the Hong Kong Government in 2002.

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy, aged 62, was appointed a Director on 11
May 2007. He has over 20 years of experience in financial advisory, taxation
and management. He was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers and retired
in June 2005. In October 2005, he joined a professional consulting firm,
Russell Bedford Hong Kong Limited, as Director-Tax & Business Advisory. Mr.
Chung is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Taxation Institution of Hong Kong and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA). He was the President of the Hong Kong branch of ACCA
for the year 2005/06. He is currently also an Independent Non-executive

Director and Chairman of the audit committee of Fittec International Group
Limited, Fook Woo Group Holdings Limited and Lee Kee Holdings Limited (all
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and China World Trade
Center Company Limited (listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange).
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P., aged 51, was appointed a Director on 13 May
2005. Mr. HO is the Executive Director of the Hong Kong Shippers’ Council.
He has over 20 years’ experience in the Shipping and Logistics industry. As
he now shapes the thrust of the Shippers’ Council mandate as the voice of the
Hong Kong shippers, he has considerable experience in aspects of trade and
transport of goods. Prior to the Shippers’ Council, he was Deputy Managing
Director of Swire Shipping Agencies and Taikoo Maritime Services Ltd, gaining
experience in liner shipping, warehousing and distribution, freight forwarding,
container haulage, mid-stream operations, China feeders, transport and
logistics services. Mr. HO is a member of the Port Operations Committee,
the Logistics Industry Training Advisory Committee, and the Transport &
Shipping Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce. He
was appointed as the Chairman of Logistics Committee of the Chartered
Institute of Logistics and Transport in Hong Kong for 2003-2004, a member
of the Dangerous Goods Standing Committee for several years and Chairman
of the Hong Kong Liner Shipping Association for 1993-1995. He is the current
Chairman of Hong Kong Logistics Management Staff Association, Council
Member of the Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport in Hong Kong,
Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing (Hong Kong), and Advisor to the
China Council for the Promotion of International Trade of International Trade
Guangzhou Sub-Council, and Shenzhen Ports and Harbour Association. Mr.
Ho has been elected as a member of the Election Committee for the Chief
Executive in 2011.

Senior Management

Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred, aged 61, is our Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary. As the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, Mr. LI is
responsible for all our financial management activities including financial
accounting and reporting, treasury, budgeting, financial planning and control.
He has over 32 years’ experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining
us in 1997, he held the post of Senior Manager in the Finance Division of
Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited. He holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration, a Master of Science degree in Logistics and a Master
of Science degree in Finance. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants in the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.

=16 )

BIYFHITES(H)

AYERE P At—5H R-ETRAFRAT=HE
REREE - MEERBENBAZEG ZHITARE - 1t
RIERDRITEEER T F2ER - MEEHEERE
BHNEEKS  NEHEDEBNEAZEERARREE
NEAZREA - RIMANBEAZE G ZAT ARSI
(REB)BRABRALEENRZAEREEE  BRTE
s - AKX BERIE EE - PRIEE XM
BREDRIRS ZER - WAERBATHEBZES Y
MEBIEAREGRE RN ERIMBEEG K
8 R TR =FE - TTNFREEEATEERYR
PRYRZEEIR  URERIEERREBEZREGZES
F YR -NAN=ZFE-NNBFRHEEECHLHHE
I - MRERTREMREEAEHEERR  TEEBYR
BEEKEE  BEMSRERL  PREEEIRERE
SEMTOGRAIEAGSRERE - fIEEE—T——F8%
BATERREEREESEERE -

BREERE

FEELE Nt MBEERARMWE - ERAAR
ZHBRE  FREARARRMEUBERED  FEH
BEst RER - B Y - M EIRER - FRERSE
BERHTEESRB= T ELB - R—NNEEMAK
KEZH FRERBBENERADUBRL SRR -
B TRAERSELTEM  YRBRRRLBU NSRS
BRI BN - MARERFEREGHAE - BEGHA
RERBEFANELNGZEE -




16  Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited ES5RETEZESER AR

Corporate Governance Report ¥ ERREE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate governance
practices and every effort has been made to comply with the provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”)
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK").

Internal Controls & Risk Management

The Board of Directors and Management have always emphasised the need to
maintain a sound and effective system of internal control and risk management
as a means to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.

As part of the on-going process, the Company has during the year continued to
assess its internal control system with reference to the COSO (The Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission, 1994) internal
control framework. Efforts were made to assess the Company’s internal control
system against the five elements of control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, communication and monitoring. In addition, the Company
has also carried out a high-level risk assessment review. The review was
conducted in the form of a self-risk assessment process completed by relevant
department heads supplemented by some high-level and independent risk
control tests conducted by the Company’s Internal Audit Department. This
assessment review covered the Company’s operations and its associated key
processes and sub-processes. These process and sub-processes could be
categorised into strategic management, core business processes and resource
management.

Based on the results of the above assessment and review, the Board is
satisfied that the internal control and risk management system of the Company
is both adequate and effective. The Company will continue to place great
emphasis on the need for good corporate governance and an effective internal
control and risk management system in the years to come.
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Board of Directors

The Company is led and controlled through the Board of Directors, which
is constituted by three Executive Directors, four Non-executive Directors,
including the Chairman of the Board, and four Independent Non-executive
Directors. The four Independent Non-executive Directors have all confirmed
in writing to the Company that they meet all the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board oversees the overall management and operations of the Company.
Major responsibilities include approving the Company’s overall business,
financial and technical strategies, setting key performance targets, approving
budgets and major expenditures, supervising and scrutinising the performance
of management.

There is no service contract between the Company and the Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors. They have no fixed term
of service with the Company but will be subject to rotational retirement and re-
election requirement at annual general meetings pursuant to Article 100 of the
Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to that Article, about one half
of the Directors shall retire but may be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting.

The Board has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules and the Directors have fully complied with it.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the Board with reference
to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Meetings =
Pursuant to relevant provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, WERNAT/ASSRMBNBHEKY  EEeB885 8%
the Board meets regularly for at least four times a year, i.e. at approximately DIREREE - MBIANEERG—K o o - EFET
quarterly intervals. In addition, special meetings of the Board will be convened SRFZAMAERIEE R ——FQEFH  EFgA
if the situation requires so. During the calendar year of 2011, the Board HABE @3 - EEHHERYIKIOT :
convened a total of four meetings and the attendance of the Directors is
tabulated as follows:
Number of meetings
held while Number of
being a director meetings
EREER attended
Names HH BITHEBRE HEERRE
Chairman *E
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. FTyfEtE+ - sBS, JP. 4 4
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia BEELLT
(appointed on 20 April 2011) (R=F——4Fp9 H =+ HAEZ(T) 3 3
Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric BERERE 4 2
Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans Michael 564 4 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. CHAK Hubert BgsE 4 3
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay AfEERE A 4 4
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy et deibivias] 4 4
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. Sz EE - P 4 4
Mr. LAl Daniel RIS A
(appointed on 20 May 2011 and (R=F——FRA=-+HEZHEL
resigned on 1 January 2012) R—F——F— F—HFHT) 3 3
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael (Chief Executive Officer) RIZBAS A (TTRAEEE) 4 4
Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew BEIAN A
(Acting Deputy Chief Executive Officer) (BEE7TTBAEZ)
(appointed on 15 November 2011) (R=F——F+—A+AHAEZE) 0 0
Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily £ [EFi3ogun
(Chief Operations Officer) (BEmE 4 4
Directors resigned/retired during 2011 R-E——FBREREZES
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan, Ann FREMRZ+
(resigned as Non-executive Director on 20 April 2011) (R=—FE——FWH—=—+H
BHIFHITEE) 1 1
Mr. WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrenceft 4
(retired as Non-executive Director on 20 May 2011) = —=—Y35 /5 = 7 /=]
RIFIFHTEE) 1 0
Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George REERE
(retired as Independent Non-executive Director R—=F——FFH—+H
on 20 May 2011) RIEBUIEHITERE) 1 1
Mr. SEE Chi Kwok, Felix MBS
(resigned as Executive Director and (R-—ZFE—FNHA—H
DCEO on 2 September 2011) FHIBTTEE R BT THAEE) 3 3
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Directors’ and Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Accounts

The management provides the explanation and information to the Board to
facilitate its informed assessment of the Group’s financial and other matters
put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.
Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments
and estimates made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable laws were complied
with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Board has prepared the financial statements
on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the Group are disclosed in
the “Report of the Auditors”.

Committees of the Board

The Board has established the following committees: the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Investment
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of 4 Non-executive Directors; all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Number of meetings

held while Number of
being a member meetings
EERER attended
Names HH BITHEBRE™ HESRRE
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy (Chairman) ERRSTE(FE) 2 2
Mr. CHAK Hubert 2R 2 2
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay @R A 2 2
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. A& AE - P,
(appointed on 27 March 2012) (R-F——F=H—++HAREF) 0 0
Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George REeETE
(resigned on 20 May 2011) (R=F——4%7H_—+HAFE) 1 1l
Mr. LAl Daniel BB e
(appointed on 20 May 2011 and (R=ZF——FRA=-1+HEZHER
resigned on 1 January 2012) RoF——F—A—HEF) 1 1
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Committees of the Board (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee oversees the overall financial reporting process as well
as the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. In
addition, it is responsible for making recommendations to the Board for the
appointment, reappointment or removal of the external auditor. It also reviews
and monitors the external auditor’s independence and objectivity as well as the
effectiveness of the audit process to make sure that it is in full compliance with
applicable standards.

Report of Audit Committee

In 2011, the Audit Committee met two times. In addition to reviewing and
approving the various audit plans and audit reports prepared by the Internal
Audit Department of the Company, it also reviewed the interim and financial
reports of the Company.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During 2011, the audit and non-audit fees payable/paid to KPMG was made
up of an audit fee of HK$0.8 million (2010: HK$0.8 million) and a non-audit
related service fee of HK$0.04 million (2010: HK$0.04 million). The latter
represented taxation service fee.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee consists of three Non-executive Directors; two of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

EEEZ8E(H)
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Number of meetings

held while Number of
being a member meetings
BEERSR attended
Names HH BITHEBRE™ HESRRE
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay (Chairman) [RIEER I (F ) 2 2
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZFJhEE L - sB.S., JP. 2 2
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SRR E
(appointed on 27 March 2012) (R-FE——F=H—++EEZF) 0 0
Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George (Chairman) REBETE(EE)
(resigned on 20 May 2011) (R=F——fF7H—+HFE) 1 1
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. A& %A - P,
(resigned on 27 March 2012) (R-FE——F=H _—++HEHT) 2 2

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Board based on the advice
of the Remuneration Committee with reference to their responsibilities with
the Company. During the year, the Remuneration Committee convened two
meetings to review the remuneration of the senior staff.
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Committees of the Board (continued)

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of three Non-executive Directors; two of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

EEEZ8E(H)

REZEES
REZBGM=AIFMITERER - Hh R AE I
E=x-

Number of meetings

held while Number of

being a member meetings

BEERSR attended

Names #"E BITHEBRE HEEBRY
Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. (Chairman) ISTESEE - JP.(E/E) 1 1
Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy SRR 1 1
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P. ZTyfEE+ 0 sBS., JP. 1 1

The main duty of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to select suitable Board members.

The selection of individuals to become Directors is based on assessment
of their professional qualifications and experience. During the year, the
Nomination Committee convened one meeting to discuss matters related to
the appointment of Board members.

Investment Committee
The Investment Committee consists of two Directors; all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Number of meetings

held while Number of
being a member meetings
BERER attended
Names it BITHERRE HESRRE
Mr. CHAK Hubert (Chairman) Bisa k() 1 1
Mr. CHAU Tak Hay BB A 1 1
Mr. LAl Daniel BT E
(appointed on 20 May 2011 and (R=ZF——FARA-1+HEZHTR
resigned on 1 January 2012) R-F——F—H—HAFL) 1 1
Mr. WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrenceft 4
(resigned on 20 May 2011) (R=—F——F=FHA=+HABL) 0 0
Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George ReHETE
(resigned on 20 May 2011) (R=—F——EFHA-+ABL) 0 0

The main duty of the Investment Committee is to set up a policy to guide the
Company to invest in financial instruments and oversee the management of
the Company in the execution of the policy. During the year, the Investment
Committee held one meeting.
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Committees of the Board (continued) EEgZEg (@A)
Corporate Governance Committee TEEREES

The Corporate Governance Committee was established by the Board on NEERTEehREFeN T —F=A-1++tHKX "
27 March 2012. It consists of 4 Non-executive Directors; all of whom are WP SERITESENK - RS ARBIUIFENITES - B
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy BHERSEAE(TE) 2t d  FEERAEA Ry E
(Chairman), Mr. CHAK Hubert, Mr. CHAU Tak Hay and Mr. HO Lap Kee, S P e

Sunny, J.P..
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for ensuring and DEBAZESEEREMNER LI ATNRIMEE AT
upholding good corporate governance functions of the Company. g ©
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has
its registered office and principle place of business at 11th and 12th Floors,
Tower B, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of front-end GETS
services for processing certain official trade-related documents.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers
The information in respect of the Group'’s sales and purchases attributable to

the major customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year is as
follows:

EEEMAMBRRREBAE—"T——F+-A=+—H
EFEREEREERTHRE -

ITEERMH
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ARRMEEXBSRHEEIEE TRAEBE SRR
GETSAR# °

ARFMBRRINEZEH R EMFBERRM B RRA
15

EFREFRHER

AEERAH R R EES RS B THHE R
SRAAR T :

Percentage of the Group’s Total

EAEEAENE DT
Sales Purchases
HER R
The largest customer SAEF 1.0%
Five largest customers in aggregate ARBRFAR 2.7%
The largest supplier BABLER 7.9%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AARHEREE 15.3%

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the state of
the Company’s and the Group’s affairs at that date are set out in the financial
statements on Pages 39 to 109.
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Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of HK$70,065,000
(2010: HK$69,259,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the
financial statements.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK 6.1 cents
per share (2010: HK 6.3 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December
2011.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 23(b) to the financial statements.

Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.
Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, S.B.S., J.P.

Executive Directors

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael

Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew (appointed on 15 November 2011)
Mr. SEE Chi Kwok, Felix (resigned on 2 September 2011)

Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily

Non-executive Directors

Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia (appointed on 20 April 2011)
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan, Ann (resigned on 20 April 2011)
Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric

Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael

Mr. WEBB Lawrence (retired on 20 May 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAK Hubert

Mr. CHAU Tak Hay

Mr. CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy

Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P.

Mr. YUEN Kam Ho, George (retired on 20 May 2011)

Mr. LAl Daniel (appointed on 20 May 2011 and resigned on 1 January 2012)

Biographical details of the Directors at the date of this report are shown on
Pages 10 and 15.
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Directors (continued)

Mr. IP Sing Chi, Eric, Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael, Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan,
Emily, Mr. CHAU Tak Hay and Mr. HO Lap Kee, Sunny, J.P. shall retire from
office in accordance with Article 100 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
and Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew shall retire from office in accordance
with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of Association, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Ms. TSANG Oi Lin, Ophelia was appointed as Non-executive Director on 20
April 2011 and is a civil servant of the Government, and accordingly may
be regarded as interested in all contracts and other dealings between the
Government or the Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) and members of
the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the Company or
its subsidiaries was a party, in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contract

During the year, none of the Directors had any existing or proposed service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries except the three Executive
Directors’ employment contracts, details of which are set out below.

On 24 June 2009, the employment contract between the Company and Mr.
WU Wai Chung, Michael was entered into for a period of three year and three
months commencing on 1 October 2009 until 31 December 2012 in relation to
the appointment of Mr. WU to act as Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
During the three months from 1 October 2009 to 31 December 2009, Mr. WU
was titled CEO-designate. The contract can be terminated by the Company or
Mr. WU by giving a three months’ notice.

Under the employment contract of 30 August 2004 signed between the
Company and Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew, the contract can be
terminated by the Company or Mr. CHENG by giving a one month’s notice
or payment in lieu of notice. On 15 November 2011, Mr. CHENG has been
appointed to be the Acting Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Directors’ Service Contract (continued)

Under the employment contract between the Company and Ms. CHUNG Shun
Kwan, Emily dated 20 March 2008, Ms. CHUNG acts as the Chief Operations
Officer of the Company. The contract can be terminated by the Company or Ms.
CHUNG by giving a one month’s notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Save for the disclosed, no director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, Non-executive Director, has a deemed interest
in 6,320,312 shares of the Company. Mr. KIHM Lutz Hans Michael, Non-
executive Director, Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, Mr. CHENG Chun Chung,
Andrew and Ms. CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, Executive Directors of the
Company, currently hold 718,000, 1,613,224, 2,291,524 and 3,117,565
ordinary shares of the Company respectively as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO.

The Directors of the Company are entitled to ordinary shares of the Company
under the Share Award Scheme and also options under the share option
schemes of the Company, details of which are respectively set out in the
sections “Share Award Scheme” and “Share Option Schemes” below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interest or short
positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, any
of its holding company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Share Award Scheme

On 16 March 2009 (“Adoption Date”), the Board of Directors of the Company
adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) to reward staff above a certain
grade in the Company (“Eligible Employees”). This scheme has replaced the
Share Option Schemes previously implemented by the Company.

Under Part 1 of the Scheme, Eligible Employees at assistant manager grade
and above receive an offer from the Company to purchase Tradelink shares
(“Shares”) at a discounted price depending on the lock-up period which the
Eligible Employees may choose. Under Part 2, Eligible Employees at Vice
President grade and above receive Shares at nil consideration but subject to a
one-year lock-up period.
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Share Award Scheme (continued)

The Scheme is valid for 10 years from the Adoption Date (i.e. 16 March 2009)
or until such other date as the Board may decide. Unless the Board otherwise
decides, the total number of Shares purchased by the Trustee under the
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Adoption Date (being 77,830,605 Shares).

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, Mr. CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew and Ms.
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily, all Executive Directors of the Company are
respectively entitled to 1,613,224, 820,097 and 1,021,717 ordinary shares
under Part 1 and Part 2 of the Share Award Scheme subject to the terms and
conditions thereof.

Share Option Schemes

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 2 August 2000 and
amended on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002 respectively (“Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) and a share option scheme on 14 October 2005
(“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors are authorised to
invite employees of the Group, including its Directors of any company in the
Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 per grant under the share option schemes. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Each option has a 10-year exercise period.

The share option schemes give the participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company and help motivate the participants to optimise
their performance and efficiency and attract and retain participants whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability of the
Group.

The total number of share options which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under all share option schemes shall not exceed in
aggregate 10% of the issued capital or 77,763,250 shares at the Company’s
listing date, being 28 October 2005 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). Options
that have lapsed shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The Scheme Mandate Limit may be renewed by
obtaining approval of shareholders in general meeting of the Company
provided that such the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the share option schemes under the
Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed shall not exceed 10% of the shares issued
at the date of approval of such limit (the “Refreshed Limit”). Options previously
granted (which may be cancelled, lapsed or exercised) shall not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Refreshed Limit.

The Company has ceased to grant options to its employees since the
replacement of the Share Option Schemes by the above-mentioned
share award scheme on 16 March 2009, but options granted prior to the
replacement are still valid and enforceable.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Under the Pre-IPO share option scheme, no option could be granted to any
grantee, so that the grantee would, taking also into account options previously
granted to him, be entitled to subscribe for more than 25% of the aggregate
number of shares subject to the Pre-IPO share option scheme.

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme approved on 2 August
2000 and amended on 11 September 2001 and 26 November 2002

The granting of share options commenced on 24 November 2000 and
has ceased upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of the SEHK on 28 October 2005. Commencing from the first, second
and third anniversaries of the listing date, the relevant grantee may
exercise up to 25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the shares comprised
in the option (less any number of shares in respect of which the option
has been previously exercised). The exercise price is the lower of HK$0.9
and 80% of the IPO price. On 28 October 2005, the IPO price was fixed
at HK$1.25 per share.

Pursuant to the grant of options approved on 22 March 2005

At its meeting on 22 March 2005, the Board approved a fresh allotment of
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to all permanent
staff. The grant was made conditional upon the successful listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Main Board of the SEHK. The terms are the
same as those for the grants as stated above, except that the exercise
price shall be equal to the IPO price or HK$1.25 per share.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

At the general meeting of the Company held on 14 October 2005, the
shareholders approved and adopted a share option scheme (including the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme) (“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”).

Under this share option scheme, the Board has the absolute discretion to
offer any employees (whether full-time or part-time), directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors), consultants, business associates
or advisers of the Company or any company within the Group options to
subscribe for shares, provided that the total number of shares issued or to be
issued to any one grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. The share options granted under the share
option scheme vest after 12 months, 24 months and 36 months to exercise
25%, 60% and 100% respectively of the share options. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each share option upon exercise of an option
shall be determined by the Board and shall be not less than the greater of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares on the SEHK'’s daily quotation sheet on the
date, which must be a business day, written on such option (the Date of
Grant);

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

At its meetings on 19 March 2007 and 14 April 2008 respectively, the Board
approved an allotment of share options under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme to all permanent staff in accordance with the terms stated above.

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors and employees of the Company had
the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of the Company
granted for nil consideration under the share option schemes of the Company.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of
the Company.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) B AESTEI(E)
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) BRAFRBREBRESTS(E)
Effect of options
lapsed upon
termination of No. of options
No. of options employment/ outstanding Market value
outstanding expiry of the asat per share
at 1 January 10-year 31 December on exercise
2011 exercise period No. of option 2011 of options®
WZB--F RALFE/ exercised R=B--§ Exercise B E
-A-B tETEHER  duringtheyear +=B=+-AH Exercise price TR
HRATHER [k RERTEZ HATES  Date granted period  per share SRERG
BRESA BRENTE BREHE BREHA RiLAH s BROTEE fmfEn
HKS HK$
BT BT
Directors B2
CHENG Chun Chung, Andrew ~ Eifs7a 300,000 - (300,000) - 11/09/2002 10 years +4 090 1.25
208 524 - - 208,524 14/10/2005 10 years +4 1.25 -
507,519 - - 507,519 19/03/2007 10 years +4 142 -
435,384 - - 435,384 14/04/2008 10 years +4 1.01 -
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily 1 400,000 - (400,000) - 13/12/2001 10 years +4 090 115
396,845 - - 396,845 14/10/2005 10 years +4 1.25 -
415,243 - - 415,243 19/03/2007 10 years +4 142 -
483,760 - (400,283) 83477 14/04/2008 10 years +4 1.01 1.10
Employees &8 1,400,000 (470,000) (930,000) - in 2001 10 years +4 0.90 1.21
RZZZ-%
361,000 - (200,000) 161,000 in 2002 10 years +4 090 1.20
ATTF
160,000 (40,000) (80,000) 40,000 in 2003 10 years +4 090 1.21
RITT=%
105,000 (40,000) - 65,000 in 2004 10 years +4 090 -
RZZTME
7,036,775 (1,187,825) - 5,848,950 14/10/2005 10 years +4 1.25 -
4,029,000 (1,019,649) - 3,009,351 19/03/2007 10 years +4 142 -
4,942,351 (491,930) (1,629,170) 2,821,251 14/04/2008 10 years +4 1.01 1.27

Total @t 21,201,401 (3,249,404) (3939,453) 14,012,544

A being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares A REBLERIBIETTIE HRIFI A 2\ ] BAR 2 IIEFIULTTIE -
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names of the
Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the
weighted average value per option is provided in Notes 1(p)(ii) and 22(a)(ii) to
the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, or its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or
any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interest in the Company’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2011 amounting to 5% or more of the

ordinary shares in issue:
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each

SREEEB0.20THEER
Corporate/ % of total
Registered individual Number of issued shares
shareholders interests shares EEBTRE
BERBRE AR EAER RBEE BEHED
Substantial shareholders FERR
South China (Jersey) Holdings South China (Jersey)

Limited Holdings Limited - 101,125,000 101,125,000 12.92%
TAL Apparel Limited TAL Apparel Limited 101,125,000 - 101,125,000 12.92%
The Financial Secretary AR REE

Incorporated 95,673,000 - 95,673,000 12.23%
Other persons Ht A+
DJE Kapital AG DJE Kapital AG - 63,258,000 63,258,000 8.08%
DJE Investment S.A. DJE Investment S.A. 63,258,000 - 63,258,000 8.08%
Zwaanstra John Zwaanstra John - 55,002,000 55,002,000 7.03%
Penta Investment Advisers Penta Investment Advisers

Limited Limited 55,002,000 - 55,002,000 7.03%
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

The register of interests in shares and short positions kept under Section
336 of the SFO indicates that the interest disclosed by South China (Jersey)
Holdings Limited is the same as the 101,125,000 shares disclosed by TAL
Apparel Limited, its 100% owned subsidiary and the interest disclosed by DJE
Kapital AG is the same as the 63,258,000 shares disclosed by DJE Investment
S.A., its 81% owned subsidiary and the interest disclosed by Zwaanstra John
is the same as the 55,002,000 Shares disclosed by Penta Investment Advisers
Limited.

Apart from the above, the Company had not been notified by any person
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2011, which was recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

Connected Transactions

During the year under review, the Company continued to be a party to certain
transactions with the Government. The FSI has been our second largest
shareholder and connected person. The Government, holding the Company’s
shares through the FSI, has therefore also been considered as a connected
person.

Although those transactions were “connected transactions” as defined in
the Listing Rules, all of them were either sharing of administrative services
or de minimis transactions respectively exempted under Rules 14A.33(2)
and 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules from all reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

On 17 December 2008, the Company entered into a contract with the
Government (as represented by The Director of Government Logistic) relating
to the setting up of a call centre and the provision of call centre services by
the Company for the Road Cargo System (“ROCARS Contract”). As explained
above, the Government is a connected person of the Company and therefore
the setting up of a call centre on a one-off basis constituted a connected
transaction and the provision of call centre services on an on-going basis over
a period of five years constituted a continuing connected transaction under the
ROCARS Contract.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to the ROCARS Contract, the Government shall pay the Company a
one-off charge for the setting up of the call centre and during the five-year term
of the ROCARS Contract, shall also pay the Company a service charge per call
multiplied by the number of calls which according to the Company’s estimation
will not exceed the annual caps disclosed in the relevant announcement dated
24 December 2008.

The Company commenced the ROCARS call centre services in early 2010 in
accordance with the Government schedule.

On 22 September 2010, the Company entered into a contract with the
Government (as represented by the Postmaster General); pursuant to which
the Government shall provide counter collection service at designated post
offices to facilitate traders without the capability to submit trade documentation
to the Government in electronic form to hand in paper documents for data
conversion and submission (“Counter Collection Service Agreement”). To
enable the provision of the counter collection service, Tradelink shall, on or
before 1 November 2010, supply and install at the designated post offices
necessary software and hardware, which Tradelink may, at its sole discretion,
repossess upon early termination or natural expiry of the Counter Collection
Service Agreement. As explained above, the Government is a connected
person of the Company and therefore the provision of the counter collection
service on a continuing or recurring basis over a period of time will constitute
a continuing connected transaction under the Counter Collection Service
Agreement.

According to the Counter Collection Service Agreement, during the three-year
term of the Agreement, Tradelink shall pay the Government a monthly service
charge based on the number of paper documents processed subject to a
guaranteed minimum payment which according to the Company’s estimation
will not exceed the annual caps disclosed in the relevant announcement dated
24 September 2010.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Board has reviewed and
the Independent Non-executive Directors have confirmed that the above-
mentioned ROCARS transaction and counter collection service transaction
(collectively referred to as the “Transactions”) for the year ended 31 December
2011 were entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rule, the Board engaged, KPMG, the
auditor of the Company to perform procedures on the Transactions which:

(i)  have received the approval from the Board;
(ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(iii) have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing the Transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the annual caps disclosed in the relevant
announcements.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in this Annual Report in accordance with Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.38.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

The Company did not have any bank loans and borrowings as at 31 December
2011.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on Page 110 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. Particulars of these retirement schemes

are set out in Note 21 to the financial statements.
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Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors to
be independent.

Auditors
KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A

resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SBS., J.P.
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers

The Board has adopted the Model Code. The Directors have been specifically
requested to observe the Model Code when dealing in the Company’s
securities. According to the Company’s record, all Directors have complied
with the required standards as set out in the Model Code.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2011, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities,
other than those purchased for the Share Award Scheme (Note 22(b)).

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from 24 May to 25 May 2012, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied
by share certificates and transfer form must be lodged with the Company’s
Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 pm on 23 May 2012.

Dividend

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK 6.1 cents
per share (2010: HK 6.3 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December
2011 to shareholders subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The final dividend will be paid
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on 24 May 2012, on or about 1 June 2012.

On 10 October 2011, the Company paid an interim dividend of HK 2.8 cents
per share (2010: HK 2.5 cents per share) to the shareholders. The total
amount of 2011 interim dividend paid and 2011 final dividend payable is
100% of the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders for 2011.

The Board would like to draw the attention of shareholders to the Company’s
dividend policy enunciated at the time of the IPO in 2005, which is that the
Company will pay out not less than 60% of its distributable profit as dividend.
The fact that the Company has paid out 100% of its distributable profit over
the past six years does not mean that the dividend policy has changed.
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Report of the Auditors #Z E iR &S

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 39 to 109, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Report of the Auditors #Z E iR &S

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement ZZ& W &

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F1_A=1—ALFE

2010

—T-TF

Note HK$'000

Mzt BT

Turnover E 2 3 216,091
Interest income FEUWA 8,028
Other net (loss)/income H(E518) A FEE 5 12,408
Staff costs BB 6(a) (84,757)
Depreciation e (20,877)
Other operating expenses HAuaE & (45,312)
Profit from operations T 85,581
Share of results of associates Iy NCE S (3,989)
Profit before taxation BRBLATER 6 81,592
Taxation s 7(a) (12,333)
Profit for the year AEERF 69,259

Earnings per share (HK cents) BREFI(BL) 13

Basic LN 9.0
Diluted g 8.9

The notes on pages 48 to 109 form part of these financial statements. Details FASEF 1098 2 M BRI BIREN —5D - AAFER
of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the F o B EIRS FARBIRER B AZ R B BRI F
profit for the year are set out in Note 12. 12
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ZRE 2 E N ER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F1_A=1—ALFE

Profit for the year A FERF
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax): TEEHM2ERE (BRBE) :
Exchange difference on translation of RGN N R IS TRER Y
financial statements of overseas associates N ZERE
Available-for-sale debt securities: net movement in Al EEEES
fair value reserve N EREZEFRE
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZHERREE

The notes on pages 48 to 109 form part of these financial statements. FA8EF 1098 2 BRI SRR —

2010
—E-ZF

HK$'000
BT

69,259

2,720

(2,415)

69,564
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Zr8EEEE R

As at 31 December 2011
R-F——FFT=A=+—H

Note
Hiat
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 14(a)
Goodwill Py
Interest in associates FT{ B A Rl s 16
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEURBRFR 18
Other receivables and prepayments Ho b fE W EkTE N FE N FRIA
Other financial assets HibEr s EE 17
Deposits with bank RITIFER
Cash and cash equivalents RekBaLE
Current liabilities FEEE
Trade creditors, accounts payable and FERTBESR « FEfTSRIE K
other payables HAbERFRIE 19
Taxation T8 8(a)
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBEE
Non-current liabilities FFRBEE
Provision for long service payments REIRRG S BE 20
Deferred taxation IRIERIA 8(b)

NET ASSETS

2010
—T-ZF

HK$'000
BT

58,712
9,976
78,744

147,432

22,916
19,297
156,739
118,500
97,485

350

342,712

2,677
3,754

336,281
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Consolidated Balance Sheet Zr8EEEE R

As at 31 December 2011
R-F——FFT=A=+—H

Note
Hiat
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXREHE
Share capital &N 23(b)(i)
Reserves @&
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2012.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SBS., J.P
Chairman

WU Wai Chung, Michael
Executive Director

The notes on pages 48 to 109 form part of these financial statements.

2010

—E-ZF

HK$'000
BT

155,721
180,560

336,281

REFEeN T —FZA-+LAERRETE -

Ei
Zh/EHELT 0 sBS, JP.

HITEF
RER

BABEFE 1098 2 IFE B I IS R — 38D -
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Balance Sheet EE& &R

As at 31 December 2011
R-F——FFT=A=+—H

Non-current assets FRBEE

Fixed assets ETE&E

Interest in associates FtB & AN Rl

Interest in subsidiaries Fra B A Rl R

Current assets REEE

Trade receivables FEUARTK

Other receivables and prepayments Ho b fE W EkTE N FE N FRIA

Deposits with bank RITIFER

Cash and cash equivalents RekBaSE

Current liabilities FEEE

Trade creditors, accounts payable and FEERFR - FERT BN
other payables H e k08

Taxation 1|

Net current assets REBEEFE B

Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBEE

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Provision for long service payments RHRG B

Deferred taxation RIERLIE

NET ASSETS

2010
—T-ZF

HK$'000
BT

58,987
79,048
46,504

184,539

21,821
156,210
118,500

93,577

233

341,223

2,476
3,709
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Balance Sheet EE& &R

As at 31 December 2011
R-F——F+ZA=1—H

Note
Hiat
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXREHE
Share capital &N 23(b)(i)
Reserves @&
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2012.

Dr. LEE Nai Shee, Harry, SBS., J.P
Chairman

WU Wai Chung, Michael
Executive Director

The notes on pages 48 to 109 form part of these financial statements.

2010

—T-TF

HK$'000
BT

155,721
179,317

335,038

REFEN_T——FZA-+LAERITETE -

£
ZThEE L - sB.S., JP.

HITEF
RER

FABEF 1098 Z HIEBAK I KA — 787 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity s8R EH R

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F1_A=1—ALFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRARRERE AR
Shares
held for
Share Fair
Share Share Award Capital  Exchange value  Retained
capital  premium Scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ARHE
Bl AVE
BREA  ROEE ARG EARE  ERRE wmE  REEAN st
Note HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
it BETr BE¥Tr BMTr  BMTr BT BT BT BB
As at 1 January 2010 R-E-ZF-F—-H 155,661 118,007 (5,389) 6,278 529 1,731 46,037 322,854
Changes in equity for 2010  —F-ZEHRAERET
Dividends approved in respect  FEEEHERE
of the previous year 12 - - - - - - (BL144)  (3L144)
Issue of new shares BMRA 23(b)ii) 60 210 - - - - - 270
Equity-settled share-based NRBEE 2 RIAR S
transactions - - - 912 - - - 912
Changes in shares held for BRHEREEIRE
share award scheme BinEs) - - (6,710) - - - - (6,710)
Vesting of awarded shares BERHGE - - 556 (556) - - - -
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - (1,194) - - 1,194 -
Total comprehensive income  AEE2ENHLE
for the year - - - - 2,720 (2,415) 69,259 69,564
Dividends declared in respect  AEEEREREHNRE
of the current year 12 - - - - - - (19,465)  (19,465)
As at 31 December 2010 R-B-Bf+-A=t+-H
and 1 January 2011 k=E2——-%-p-H
Changes in equity for 2011  —B—-FHREFEZEH
Dividends approved in respect  FEERHAERS
of the previous year 12
Issue of new shares BOHRG 23(b)i)
Equity-settled share-based REEE 2RO R 5
transactions
Changes in shares held for BRnEEEEEEZ
share award scheme R EE)
Vesting of awarded shares EERNEE
Lapse of share options SRR R
Total comprehensive income  FEE2EYELE
for the year
Dividends declared in respect ~ AFEE REREAMRS.
of the current year 12
As at 31 December 2011 R-B8——-£+-A=1+-H

The notes on pages 48 to 109 form part of these financial statements. FA8E FE1098 2 MBI Rz —# 5 -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28 & FRE XK

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F1_A=1—ALFE

2010
—T—TF
HK$'000
BT T
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation BT AT F 81,592
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation e 20,877
Gain on disposals of fixed assets HERTEEERE (12)
Interest income F WA (8,028)
Share of results of associates Iy NTE 3,989
Equity-settled share-based payment AR E 2 RN 5 912
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) T 1R/ (ras) (664)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for-sale debt securities  Hi & At & B E S 2 B8/ (W) (10,508)
Operating profit before changes in working capital KRS EE BB ANCEEZF 88,158
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables FEMSBRFR - H fth JE U 0 IE
and prepayments K FBFRIE (38 ) AR 8,506
Increase in trade creditors, accounts payable and FERBRFR « FE B R EH A
other payables FEAFRIEE hN 1,756
Increase/(decrease) in customer deposits received Bl EFIZE =N/ CRD) (2,322)
Net payment for purchase of shares for B SRR BB AR Z N FFEE
Share Award Scheme (6,710)
Cash generated from operations REEENES 89,388
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBFEH (12,584)
Overseas tax paid BEVBINRIE (35)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHEENRSFE 76,769
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28 & FRE XK

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F——F1_A=1—ALFE

2010

—E-ZF

HK$'000

BT T

Investing activities REZTH
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets HEBTEEMSRE 22
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale debt securities & A] ff H EEFE S5 708 156,454
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale debt securities & A A4t H & BB ST 3K1E (157,249)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BEETEEMI A (14,600)
Payment for investment in an associate BB LN T R (56,854)
Interest received Y EFILE 8,826
Dividend received from an associate UL o (5 B A RO AR S, 500
Receipts/(placement) of deposits with bank WEY(FF ) ERITIFR (113,415)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHANESFE (176,316)
Financing activities RMEEE

Proceeds from shares issued under share option schemes — 1RIEHE I AEET 2|21 TIR D TS 218 270
Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the Company BERAARRERBEARES (50,609)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBTANRSFE (50,339)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEERM/CED)FE (149,886)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January R—A—BNBRERBEE%E 247,371
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December Rt+t-A=+—HNELRELEE 97,485

The notes on pages 48 to 109 form part of these financial statements. FEASEF109E 2 MK I STk — 35 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #&3R3% Mzt

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK”). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Company and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale
debt securities, which are stated at their fair value (Note 17).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. Major sources of
estimation uncertainty are disclosed in Note 2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} #&3R3% Mzt

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

e HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

e |mprovements to HKFRSs (2010)

These developments relate primarily to clarification of certain
disclosure requirements applicable to the Group’s financial
statements, and have no material impact on the contents of the
Group’s financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (Note 29).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Transaction fees, handling fees and registration fees
Revenue is recognised when services have been provided to
customers.

(ii) Annual subscription fees
Revenue is recognised on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the period of the subscription.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(iii)

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

1 FEEFBEE)

(c)

(d)

B BRER
BEGHMAGDMAE T EBHMBRELR 2
EIR—ENRE  TRARBRAXRNAE
SHERRIE R o B - UTRBRAEE M
THREAER -

o BREIERFEUF(ZETNFER)H
HITIREE

o HEBUBHMSE(ZT—TF)2BE

ZEEYHTERFFEANAEERBRRZE
THRERERE  AREAEEZFBHRERZA
AU BERTE -

7 5% [ 30 4 BR R DA AN & et HA e i AR AR 2
R R (H3229) o

WA TR

WA W R R ERN A FERE - MREH
B A REERAANEE - A RKAER)
NEEAT SEM At - R RIBE T HIREE WS
REERWA

() RXZE EEEBEREFTH
EREFRERGZEREHEA -

(i) F#&
FBIWA TS E 5 50 F HA i = B B )
El

(i) B2

R LR ENREMARBRRBRS
BRI TR B SR -

(iv) FISWA
FIBUA TR A B R R AR RETRRER o




50 Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B5BE FE S5 AR A7)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R 3R KizE

1 FEEFBEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) BIEEE

(e) Fixed assets

The following items of fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated depreciation (or amortisation) and impairment
losses (Note 1(k)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease (see Note 1(j));

— interest in leasehold land; and

—  other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of fixed assets,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

lower of 5 years or the
remaining term of the lease

Leasehold improvements

Platform hardware and software,

computer and office equipment 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Building 20 years

Leasehold land unexpired term of the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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1 FEEFBEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f MEARRFERERS

(f) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(i) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate (see
Note 1(g)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less any impairment losses (see Note 1(k)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see Notes 1(h) and (k)). Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together
with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 1(i)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(k)), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Goodwill

()

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see Note 1(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, (other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates,) are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price unless fair value can be
more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables
include only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:

— Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or

interest earned on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in Note 1(d)(iii) and (iv).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Other investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have
the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(k)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale securities. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the fair value reserve, except foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of monetary items
such as debt securities which are recognised directly in profit or
loss. Dividend income from these investments is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(d)
(iii) and, where these investments are interest-bearing, interest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(d)
(iv). When these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see Note 1(k)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.
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1 FEEFBEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Leased assets () EEEE

An arrangement, (comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions), is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring interest in leasehold land is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBER(E)
(k) Impairment of assets k) EERE
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and (i) BEERBRABHEERHAERRERE

other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than RN KA ES R A HEE
investments in subsidiaries) and other current and non-current BENEEMRABFLE (RHBA R
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are EBRIN) - VAR b7 85 82 3 5 B e U 3k
classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the 18 BRSMEHRETRS  LWEERE
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is EEMEERETR o 0 H B E M LS5
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists, £ EAREBBRAIE TS 75 X EE &g
any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows: R

For investment in associates recognised using the equity
method (see Note 1(g)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment as
a whole with its carrying amount in accordance with Note
1(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with Note 1(k)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the effect
of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that
has been recognised in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- fixed assets;

— investments in subsidiaries; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see Note
1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts (see Note 1(k)).

(m) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESHBER(E)
(0) Income tax (continued) (o) FRE®L(HE)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements INHARS B e A TR IE R I A b H 8 192 8
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not DHINTRETAEEEE c MARTHANERS
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and BIEREMARSPHIBEEREASHBEEE I
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or BReTA AT M A it - BIAHAR I8 & MIE T
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets HMIBEEN A B A IEE EFRLER 18
against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions BE:
are met:
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or — EBAEAHHBEEAEMAE  AARSAER
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise sTEIRREEELE SR EENRF
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or EEAE K
— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to — FRELHBEENEE: sLBEEMARE
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: V7B R — TR AR L A N H A —IE R A
FriSTERS :
—  the same taxable entity; or — RE—EERBEE =
- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in — TENERHER - ELEREHELR
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets R —(EBHE S ERBERERER
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise THEBEREE @ HEIARFREESIR
the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities AERIAEEMBEARHIBAENRE

on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously. BHREENREEERE -
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits that are
due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share based payments

Share Option Schemes and Share Award Scheme

The fair value of share options and awarded shares
granted to employees in an equity-settled share based
payment transaction is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. In respect of share options, the fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. In respect of awarded shares,
the fair value is based on the closing price at the awarded
date and any directly attributable incremental costs. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to those share options
and awarded shares, the total estimated fair value of the
share options and awarded options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
and awarded shares that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the
year of the review, (unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset,) with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options and awarded shares
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount for

the share options is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

1 FEEFBEE)

(p) EEEF
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(ii)
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Shares held for Share Award Scheme

(iv)

The shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
(“the Scheme”) are acquired from open market. The net
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held for Share
Award Scheme” and deducted from total equity. When the
awarded shares are transferred to the awardees upon vesting,
the related weighted average cost of the awarded shares vested
are credited to “Shares held for Share Award Scheme”, and
the related employment costs of the awarded shares vested
are debited to the capital reserve. The difference between the
related weighted average cost and the related employment
costs of the awarded shares is transferred to retained profits.
Where the shares held for Share Award Scheme are revoked
and the revoked shares are disposed of, the related gain or
loss is transferred to retained profits, and no gain or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Provision for long service payments

Provision is made for potential long service payment obligations
that may arise upon cessation of employment of the Group’s
employees in the future, to the extent that there is a reasonable
probability that the amounts are likely to become payable.
Such provisions are made on a systematic basis, taking into
consideration the salary and years of service of the employees
who may qualify for such payments in the future based on their
past services rendered.

1 FEEFBEE)

(p) BEEFN(E)
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(iv)
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

1 FEEFBEE)
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the group if that person:

(b)

0]

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the group;

has significant influence over the group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
group or the group’s parent.

An entity is related to the group if any of the following conditions
applies:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the group or an entity related to the
group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in Note 1(r)(a).

A person identified in Note 1(r)(a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

®

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

1 FEEFBEE)
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Accounting estimates and judgements

Key sources of estimation uncertainty in relation to the preparation of
these financial statements are as follows:

Goodwill

Note 15(a) discloses management’s judgement in relation to the
identification of the Group as the appropriate cash generating unit for
goodwill impairment assessment. Further to that, management takes into
consideration the projected volume and activity level and cash flows of
the Group’s businesses, discounted to present value at a risk-adjusted
discount rate. These projections are based on assumptions that take into
consideration management’s knowledge of the business environment and
their judgement on future performance. There is inherent uncertainty in
the estimation process and the underlying assumptions relating to the
future, and accordingly actual performance may differ significantly from
the projection.

Investment in associate

Similarly, in assessing whether these is any impairment in the carrying
value of the Group’s interest in Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science &
Technology Service Company Limited (“Nanfang”) and China International
Data Systems Co., Ltd (“Guofurui”), associates of the Group (Note 16(a)),
management takes into consideration the projected volume and activity
level, future growth rate, and cash flows of the underlying business of
Nanfang and Guofurui, discounted to present value at a risk-adjusted
discount rate. These projections are based on assumptions that take
into consideration management’'s knowledge of Nanfang and Guofurui’s
business environment and their judgement on future performance and
underlying risks. There is inherent uncertainty in the estimation process
and the underlying assumptions relating to the future, and accordingly
actual performance may differ significantly from the projection.

Turnover

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of front-end
Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) for processing certain
official trade-related documents. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
are set out in Note 15 1o the financial statements.

BET b R A E

RREAMBHREAMN S - BREHELETREENE
ZRAWT :

BE

HiatlsE) REEEEN A BRANEERETHER
EFfENEERSELBMZEE - Woh - BEEN
ZEEIARBFHEROITRERURERENAREE
B2 RBEHERKRKFUARRERE - WERATIA
TR ERBHEGRENAB LA ARRANE
EFTEH BB R AR © fEETABIE KB BIARAYE
BRRFEERNTREN - Bt - BRI A aLE
PRIEAIHHIRERER -

REEQTNRE

Rt RAHEAREERNAEESE QR EREE
ERERBERIR(ET D REERIERSER
RENTEER]) (Hi16@) 2 EEHEATRER &
BEZEIARBABRNITREERERENT
LEEmAEEE 2 EREHE KT REEREK
NERSRE - WERADRERINERBEHET R
BERNEBRRENAZLEH ARRBNEERE
RARLER PR E B R R B IKIE  ETBR R BRARK
MR RRIFERBNTREN - At - BEERRA
BEEPTIRAIMEIRERER -

ERE

AEENTIEXEYR  REUERETENEHEESX
R BRAEFE SR ([GETS)) < B AR Z =
BEBHNIERERMAZI5N




68  Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited B5BEFES5AER A7)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf#53R 3R KizE

3 Turnover (continued)

Turnover represents the value of services provided and goods supplied
to customers. The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

3 EXBE(#E)

EEBEERATPRERERBAHEERNEE - £
EREREERRNE T ZWAREANSTEMOT

2010
—EBBF
HK$'000
BT

Transaction and handling fees REHRERE
Annual subscription and registration fees FEBNTME
Others )

183,929
17,044
15,118

216,091

4 Segment reporting

Services from which the Group derive its revenue

HKFRS 8 requires disclosures of operating segment information based on
information reported to the Group’s senior management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. From the perspective
of the Group’s senior management, it is considered that assessment
of operating performance is focused on the Group as a whole, as all of
the Group'’s activities are considered to be primarily depending on the
volume of trading activities in Hong Kong and are highly integrated and
interdependent on each other. Resources are allocated based on what is
beneficial for the Group rather than any particular department. Therefore,
management considers the Group continuous to have one operating
segment under the requirement of HKFRS 8.

Reconciliation of segmental information to the information presented in
the financial statements has not been presented, as the reconciling items
are considered to be immaterial.

Revenues from major services
The Group’s revenue from its major services are set out in Note 3.

Geographical information
No geographical information is shown as the turnover and operating profit
of the Group is substantially derived from activities in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

The Group provides electronic trading services to numerous individual
customers without concentration of reliance. There is no disclosable
information of major customers under HKFRS 8.
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5 Other net (loss)/income 5 Hah(EE) WAFEE
2010
—EBBF
HK$'000
BRI
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of available-for-sale debt HEMHEEEERES(BIR), I
securities JFEE 10,508
Recovery of loan to an associate previously written off L [B184 44 /X T) 45 Al 85~ B X 1,900
12,408
6 Profit before taxation 6 BRBADEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRELATE M EHBR/ (GTA) -
2010
—ZE-FF
HK$'000
BT
(a) Staff costs: (a) BB :
Contributions to defined contribution FE IR R A
retirement plan 2,319
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses PARRBEAEE W AR S 2 B
— share option schemes — IR T2 131
— share award scheme — i1 SRR 781
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 81,526
84,757
(b) Other items: (b) HmMIEE :
Auditors’ remuneration IZERETEN < 747
Depreciation e
— assets held for use under finance lease —REREREREEANEE 143
— other assets —Hth&EE 20,734
Operating lease charges in respect of properties YIERNKEHERY 1,652
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) &5 g1 (e ) 35 (664)
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7

Income tax in the consolidated income statement 7 GZEWBERHOAEHR

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (a) HFEWFERNBIES !
2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
BT T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year AN [E & & RS R E 9,070
Provision for overseas tax for the year AEE GRS 84
Over-provision in respect of prior years DA S B RE R ()
Deferred taxation RAERIR 3,182
12,333

(b)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2011 is calculated at
16.5% (2010:16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the

year.

—E——FEENERBEIREE AT ER
HFIR16.5%(ZZF—ZF : 16.5%):TH -

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit (b) REARFHENTEIHEGHER

at applicable tax rates:

HERMT ¢

2010
—T-TF
HK$'000
BT
Profit before tax BB AR 81,592
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated REAERE R a2 RIS &
at the rates applicable to profits RBRBRANE FFTER
in the countries concerned BEBIE 13,463
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A RS E 1,012
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IR ANT R E (729)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised KRR AR AT BB E 274
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses utilised FRNAFERBEEENNMIEZE (1,927)
Over-provision in prior years AT S B ER A 3)
Other differences Hih =g 243
Actual tax expense ERHIEZ 12,333
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8 Income tax in the balance sheet

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

(b)

8 BESBERNAEHR
(a) EERERNFHBESR :

The Group The Company
TEE VN

2010 2010
—E-FF —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
ki BT

Provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the year
Provisional Profits Tax paid

REEES
FSHEE
ENEHFIGH

Deferred tax liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the balance

(b) ERBWELEHEAE :
EREERBERERNELHRIAS EOAKED

sheet and the movements during the year are as follows: MERESEBNT -
The Group The Company
AEH PN
Depreciation Depreciation
allowances allowances
in excess in excess
of related of related
depreciation depreciation
MEREEEY EREEH
HEBRTE BT E
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Deferred tax arising from: KETHEBEEE -

As at 1 January 2010 RZZE—FF—HA—H 572 508
Charged to income statement hNGERE il 3,182 3,201
As at 31 December 2010 R-IE—FTF+-_A=+— 3,754 3,709

As at 1 January 2011
Credited to income statement

R-Z——%—-A—H
RURERRETA

As at 31 December 2011

R-B——F+=ZA=t—H
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8 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 8 BEEEBRNBHR(E)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (continued) (b) ERIWELEHRIBEE : (H)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1(0), WRIBAAE1(0)FTH 2 ST EUR - AR AR KRERT
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of S M AT AR IR SH S 1R - RN SR BT MR R RR R 5T
cumulative tax losses of HK$103,181,000 (2010: HK$111,606,000) I g 18 2 RAE R 18 & E 815 103,181,0007T (=
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the T—ZF  BH111,606,00070) © FEIRITHE
losses can be utilised will be available. The tax losses do not expire T BIEEEIARER

under current tax legislation.
9 Directors’ remuneration 9 EEM2

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong BESEATEHEICHEBRENESIHEHIENT -
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Executive directors BTES
WU Wai Chung, Michael RiEE
CHENG Chun Chung Andrew ~ E}{&T&
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily EEE

SEE Chi Kwok Felix 5B
Non-executive directors FHTES

LEE Nai Shee, Harry )/

CHAK Hubert 2jang

CHAN Wai Yan, Ann BREM

CHAU Tak Hay FER

CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy B

HO Lap Kee, Sunny fal S

IP Sing Chi, Eric R

KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans

Michael

LAl Daniel s

TSANG Qi Lin, Ophelia wEE

WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrence
YUEN Kam Ho, George "ek

Total Fohy
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9 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 9 EEME(E)
Basic salary,
allowances and  Contributions

other benefits o retirement Share-based 2010
HEAHS - schemes payments Total
Fees EE R RIK Bonus* AR BERE  —T-TF
e HifaFl BELS TEAL )% i st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Executive directors HITES
WU Wai Chung, Michael RiEE - 3,500 12 114 35 3,661
CHUNG Shun Kwan, Emily Fed Y3 - 1,808 12 137 95 2,052
Non-executive directors *HTES
LEE Nai Shee, Harry ETfE 110 - - - - 110
CHAK Hubert 2ang 190 - - - - 190
CHAN Wai Yan, Ann BREM 50 - - - - 50
CHAU Tak Hay [RiEER 235 - - - - 235
CHUNG Wai Kwok, Jimmy EHE 240 - - - - 240
HO Lap Kee, Sunny (G2 237 - - - - 237
IP Sing Chi, Eric HEE 50 - - - - 50
KIHM Lutz Hans Michael KIHM Lutz Hans

Michael 70 - - - - 70
LO Sze Wai, Albert EsE 17 - - - - 17
WEBB Lawrence WEBB Lawrence 70 - - - - 70
YUE Kwok Hung, Justin REIE 73 - - - - 73
YUEN Kam Ho, George REH 287 - - - - 287
Total et 1,629 5,308 24 251 130 7,342
* Bonus represented actual bonus paid during the year. * TEALFEF A E 1T B B BRFEAT -
The above emoluments include the value of share options granted and LRS- BIES BIRIEA R AR B AR AT 8 AR 1D
shares awarded to certain directors under the Company’s share option KR ERTETESNERERERH T RS RN
schemes and share award scheme, respectively, as estimated at the date RELREEBHNGEE - LEYHEOFE
of grant and award. Details of these benefits in kind are disclosed under EREFEREEBREE IR RGERDEE
the sections “Share Option Schemes” and “Shares Award Scheme” in the BN o

Report of the Directors.
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10 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2010: two) are
directors during the year whose directors’ remuneration are disclosed in

Note 9. One of these four directors was in the directorship for only part of

the year. The portion of his emoluments that was not attributable to the

period during which he was in the directorship was disclosed as below
in aggregate with the other one individual (2010: three) with the highest

emoluments.

10 &EHAL

FR - ARREHFALTEENR(ZE—2F : BK)
EE HEZMSERWAIRE - ELRMEES
o Hh-REENEERTR—F - TXRETE
REZLESEREFHR RO RE —R(ZF—
TE ZR)RSHFATZHEEE

2010
—T—TF
HK$'000
BT T

Salaries and other emoluments
Share-based payments
Retirement scheme contributions

e hEne
VARSCHn AT A S A
RIREHEIHR

4,884
224
36

5,144

The emoluments of the above two (2010: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ERREERFAL(ZF—FF
BEWT :

=R RS

HK$

BT

2010
—E-FF
Number of
Individuals

A#

1,000,001 - 1,500,000
1,500,001 - 2,000,000
Over 2,000,001

1,000,001 - 1,500,000
1,500,001 - 2,000,000
382,000,001

11 Profit attributable to equity shareholders

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
includes a profit of HK$52,898,000 (2010: HK$64,849,000), which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

11 RERFE ARG

AAFBHERE ARG ESE RN B EE¥52,898,000
TL(ZE -4 : B¥#64,849,0007T) #a A - ERA
RAIM R PR -
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12 Dividends 12 &

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (a) AEEENEAQATREFTEANRE
attributable to the year

2010
—EBBF
HK$'000
BT
Interim dividend declared and paid of EERLRSHFERS
HK 2.8 cents per share FhE2 87
(2010: HK 2.5 cents per share) (ZZE—Z4F : FIR2.5%81l) 19,465
Final dividend proposed after the end of the BEHEFRDEHITRA
reporting period of HK 6.1 cents per share RERE IR B RRAI RS
(2010: HK 6.3 cents per share) based on FRE6. 17
issued share capital as at the year end (ZZ—ZF : FR6.3781) 49,052
68,517
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not REERRIRNAREE  WARGEARRER
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. f& -

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company b) BRAL—EBHBEE  IRFRAER
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and REAFAABDREFEANESKRE
paid during the year

2010
—E-TF
HK$'000
BT
Final dividend in respect of the previous B E—EMEREE - WRFEA
financial year, approved and paid HefE KRR RERB
during the year of HK 6.3 cents per share Fhe6.373 1
(2010: HK 4.0 cents per share) (ZZE—FF : §R4.05(L) 31,144
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13 Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$70,065,000 (2010: HK$69,259,000) and the weighted average
number of 765,575,000 ordinary shares (2010: 765,706,000
shares) in issue during the year less shares held for share award
scheme, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

13 BRER

(a)

BREXRRF
GREABFHIBREAARLEBRBRERAEA
JE 5 % I8 5 70,065,0007C (=T — T 4F « B
69,259,0007T ) A & B 21T & B AR A It 734
1% #1765,575,0004% (B R A () = ET &3 A
2R E(ZZ—Z 4 : 765,706,0000%) * 7
R -

EERIETIRE

2010
—EBBF
'000

Fh%

Issued ordinary shares as at 1 January

Effect of share options exercised EATEREIRER &
Effect of share purchase for B&1D Bt S E
Share Award Scheme & fn By s &

R—A—HRE#TEBR

778,306
210

(12,810)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
as at 31 December

JilESSS)e

Bt A=+—REBKR

765,706

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of HK$70,065,000 (2010: HK$69,259,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 781,419,000 shares (2010:
778,516,000 shares) after adjusting for the effect of the potential
dilution from ordinary shares issuable under the Company’s share
option schemes and share award scheme, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

(b)

SREERF

GRS BT T BB R AN A R A B AR R B K&
[R5 et &I FRITHERROELTH T
BEBFAEE  BEAARTBERRERS
A JE 35 ) 7 # 70,065,000 7T ( — T —ZT4F -
7 #569,259,0007T ) K & i Ik &9 h0 A 19 Ik £
781,419,000f% (= ZF —= 4 : 778,516,000/% ) &t
g-/aAmT

EERIET IR (REE)

2010
—ZT-TF
'000
F %

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(less shares held for share award scheme)
as at 31 December

Effect of deemed issue of shares under the

Company’s share option schemes BRI E
Effect of share award scheme RN SR EI R E

=21

R+ RA=+—H&BEk
IR BB IR AR
R B A2 BD)

BVERIE AR AR RT 2

765,706

12,810

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted) as at 31 December

WA=+ REER
AR (8)

778,516
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14 Fixed assets 14 BIE&EE

(@) The Group (@) ~E£H

Cost: BRA:

Asat 1 January 2011 W-8--£-5-H
Additions NE

Disposals HE

Asat 31 December 2011  W=E—-%

Accumulated depreciation: ~ Zi7E :

As at 1 January 2011 W-8--£-5-H
Charge for the year ERFERY
Disposals HE

Asat 31 December 2011  W=E--%

Net book value: REFE:

Asat 31 December 2011 ~ W=E—-%
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14 Fixed assets (continued) 14 EEEE (&)
(@) The Group (continued) (a) REB(HE)
Platform
hardware
and software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture and held
Leasehold Faft and for own use
improvements Rt Motor fixtures BiEERZ
EYIES R vehicles FiR Building Subtotal AELH Total
R RAERE & RE B Nt 4l a5t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT EETR BT BT B¥Tn B%TR AT BETR

Cost: BRA:

Asat 1 January 2010 W-5-Z5-A-H 14,118 277,962 410 2987 33250 328721 6,018 334,745
Additions e 470 138% 234 - - 14,600 - 14,600
Disposals et (4,286) (22,085) (136) (84) - (26,591) - (26,591)

As at 31 December 2010 R-E-5%
+-A=1-H 10,302 269,773 508 2903 33,250 316,736 6,018 322,754

Accumulated depreciation: ~ Zi7E :

Asat 1 January 2010 R-F-TE-R-0 123% 245,923 250 2,605 7897 269,070 676 269,746
Charge for the year ERERR 1,557 17119 130 206 1,662 20,734 143 20877
Disposals HE (4,285) (22,080) (136) (80) - (26,581) - (26,581)

As at 31 December 2010 RZE-5F
+ZA=+-H 9,667 240,962 244 2791 9,559 263,223 819 264,042

Net book value: REFE:

As at 31 December 2010 W_E-5F
TZA=1-H 635 28811 264 112 23691 53513 5,199 58,712
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14 Fixed assets (continued) 14 BEEE(HE)

(b) The Company (b) &RAFH

Cost: BRA:

Asat 1 January 2011 W-8--£-5-H
Additions NE

Disposals HE

Asat 31 December 2011  W=E—-%

Accumulated depreciation: ~ Zi7E :

As at 1 January 2011 W-8--£-5-H
Charge for the year ERFERY
Disposals HE

Asat 31 December 2011  W=E—-%

Net book value: REFE:

Asat 31 December 2011  W=E—-%
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14 Fixed assets (continued) 14 BEEE(E)
(b) The Company (continued) (b) RAT(HE)
Platform
hardware
and software,
computer Interest in
and office leasehold
equipment Furniture and held
Leasehold Falt and for own use
improvements Rk Motor fixtures #ERRZ
Henz KR vehicles BRR Building Subtotal  FELI Total
®E  BAERE & B BT NGt 4} a5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
ARt ABTR  BBTR BETR B¥TR BBTR B%TR BETR

Cost: R
Asat 1 January 2010 W=5-Z5-F-H 13943 201,096 410 2,864 33,250 251,563 6,018 257,581
Additions RE 181 12,719 234 - - 13,134 - 13,134
Transfer from a subsidiary BNBARIER - 16,764 - - - 16,764 - 16,764
Disposals HE (4,280) (22,085) (136) (84) - (26,585) - (26,585)
As at 31 December 2010 RZE-Z%F
+ZF=1-H 9,844 208,494 508 2,780 33250 254,876 6,018 260,8%
Accumulated depreciation: ~ B3t17E
Asat 1 January 2010 R=Z-FF-F-H 12,285 191,150 250 2,508 7897 214,090 676 214,766
Charge for the year ERHERR 1,506 10,018 130 257 1,662 13573 143 13716
Disposals it (4.279) (22,080) (136) (80) - (26,575) - (26,575)
As at 31 December 2010 RZF-ZF
+-A=+-H 9,512 179,088 244 2,685 9,559 201,083 819 201,907
Net book value: REFE:
As at 31 December 2010 RZZE-5%
+-A=1-8 33 29,406 264 % 23691 53,788 5199 58987
(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows: (c) MERMFEINUOT :
2010
T
HK$'000
The Group and the Company EEBRAKAT BT
Interest in leasehold land situated BEEE-ZTNEF2
in Hong Kong held for own use HREHE - FEERZ
under medium-term lease up to 2047 BEHE bR 5,199
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15 Interest in subsidiaries

15 FribMiE 2 B

Unlisted shares, at cost

FEEMR - R AME

Details of the subsidiaries which principally affected the results or assets

of the Group are as follows:

X34

2010
e
HK$'000
BT

46,504

BASEXEXEENHBARFENT

Proportion of

Proportion of

Place of ownership ownership
incorporation Particulars of issued interest held by interest held by
and operation and paid up capital the Company a subsidiary
Name of subsidiary company EMEIR BRTR HAQEHEz dANBARAREZ Principal activity
WEARBME EENH BRERAFE REREZEAL BEEEZRASW TEXK
Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% - Certificate Authority
SIRERBERAT 5 HKS$1 each services
10,0008 SR E A BERERG
BELILRG
Trade Facilitation Services Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of 100% - Dormant
& HK$1 each BEE
1008 BRREE
EELILRG
Digital Trade and Transportation Hong Kong 135,240,000 100% - Provision of electronic
Network Limited Fy ordinary shares messaging routing and
BB S ERNRERATA of HK$1 each transformation services
135,240,000 SR E & REEFHEERR
BEITE Bk Bk
Up Forward Technology Limited Hong Kong 1 share of 100% - Trade facilitation
ERRRERAT B HK$1 each B5%&h
IRGRESLTRG
FRENGBETRERE PRC HK$6,900,000 100% - Provision of e-commerce
BRAR F #6,900,0007T and e-logistics services
REEFHER
EFIRRS
KRB SBARARAR PRC RMB500,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
H AERE500,0007T and e-logistics services

RUEFHER
EFMRIRE
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15 Interest in subsidiaries (continued) 15 FriLBE D R ()
Proportion of Proportion of
Place of ownership ownership
incorporation Particulars of issued interest held by interest held by
and operation and paid up capital the Company a subsidiary
Name of subsidiary company EMARILR BRTR HARFAHEZ HHBARAREZ Principal activity
WEAREMR EENY BRRAFEE REREEZEAIN BEREZEAL FEER
REEEHBETRHRARARN PRC RMB100,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AE#100,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
ERR ik v
KEZAHBREARAT PRC RMB100,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AE#100,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
BRIk v
EMNENSBETRBARARN PRC RMB500,000 - 100% Provision of e-commerce
F AE#500,0007C and e-logistics services
REEFHER
BRIk v
Each of these is controlled subsidiaries as defined under Note 1(f) and LA ESE BRI 1T RERMZAFHINE AR - WER
have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements. AEBMMIEHREREE AR -
# Subsidiaries not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries # BEINTE 2 r] RAS BT B BT BB © ZFHAE
not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover constituting less B SR8 SR E I A& BB 2 518 IR AT R B
than 1% of the respective consolidated totals. HAEEFHERAE FBIIERE Bir 8 BREHI1 BT o
*  Company registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. * RAPEGRINEEERE -
(@) Goodwill (a) BE
On 26 March 2009, the Company purchased 58,740,000 ordinary RIZZZAF=ZA=Z+/-A  AARNHEEGE
shares in Digital Trade and Transportation Network Limited SEHHKBR AT (DTTNCo] » HUkEERT A
(“DTTNCO0"), previously an associate in which the Company A AR 6 56.57 % IR A K & X | ) 58,740,000A%
held a 56.57% equity interest prior to the acquisition, for a cash L@k - e NEABE22,791,0007T © L&
consideration of HK$22,791,000. These newly acquired shares I BE A D HEE RDTTNCoZ S0 E 21T R AR IR
represented the remaining 43.43% of all the issued and paid-up KB TH43.43% %4 - MDTTNCoA LK AEAR
capital in DTTNCo, and as such DTTNCo became a wholly-owned AIMEEHBAT -
subsidiary of the Company.
The goodwill recognised by the Group arose from the acquisition of R-TTNFUWBEDTTNCoFFE LY AL
DTTNCo in 2009 and is attributable mainly to the technical expertise, RZBBEXEREZERMN - MBEE KRB
intellectual property, and the synergies expected to be achieved from ADDTINCOEAREEIR A EB TP EME A
integrating DTTNCo into the Group’s existing business and customer EYHRSE BREBBR_ZSTAF=A
base. The goodwill has a carrying amount of HK$9,976,000 since Z+ARAR - RZE—ZEFF+A=t+—HBEZ=
the acquisition date of 26 March 2009, 31 December 2010 and 31 T——F+ZA=+—8 HEZEREABE

December 2011. 9,976,0007T °
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15 FrvbkiE 2 R ()

15 Interest in subsidiaries (continued)

(a) Goodwill (continued) (a) BHE (&)

Management considers that as the Group is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition of DTTNCo in entirety, and
there are no other units within the Group that the goodwill can be
appropriately allocated to, the Group as a whole is identified as the
cash-generating unit (“CGU”) containing the goodwill for the purpose
of impairment evaluation of the goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the Group as a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use the
Group’s cash flow projections based on financial forecasts covering
a seven-year period. Cash flows beyond the seven-year period are
extrapolated using a medium term growth rate adjusted on the
basis of management’s best estimates. The growth rates used do
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the business in
which the Group operated. The future cash flows are discounted,
at a discount rate specific to the Group for the assessment period,
to determine the value of the Group. Based on management’s
assessment, there is no impairment recognised in respect of the
provisional amount of goodwill for the year.

Amount due from a subsidiary

Amount of HK$203,386,000 (2010: HK$137,205,000) due from
a subsidiary included in the Company’s other receivables and
prepayments is unsecured, interest-bearing at a rate not significantly
different from the market and repayable on demand.

ERERA  BRAEEEAYWHEDTTNCOR
MEAEREE HRABESE - AHEREE
BOREARBNEMER - B K EERER
ReRReELEM([REELEM])  EhEE
BEH B ERER G2 R -

AEEERRSELBM 2 AIRE SRR IIRIERE
REEFEEIETE - WFAEEARBRELSF
MBI EZARERERAE - £F
AR Z RS RAREERERERRESE
i 38 B 2 Fh B R OR MR o R R BB
KEEEEB I RPFHERE - KRRER
ARHE MR ARE R EME LR - UEEARE
EEE - RIEEREZNE  FANERHEY
Rt & FERERRE -

P — FET Bt B 2 R RRIR

AR Rt FE OB e A 308 B B e I — P
B} /B8 2 A1 R IE B 15203,386,0007C ( — 2 — T4 ¢
78 #137,205,0007T) + #REAMEIEIF - LASRTH
BUMEAER L PR B RAREKEE -

16 Fr{LHE DR R

16 Interest in associates

The Group The Company
rEH ARF
2010 2010
—E-EF —E—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T

Unlisted shares, at cost IEEMRD - A E
Share of net assets EiEEEFE
Goodwill [EES

Less: Impairment loss R R EEE
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16 Interest in associates (continued) 16 FrihEteE N R = (E)
The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of which are ATEHYBEATINERS RS AREAELTE
unlisted corporate entities: T
Place of Percentage of Percentage of
incorporation Particulars of issued  Group’s effective shares held by
and operation and paid up capital interest the Company

Name of associate HMELK ERITRAR AEEME NG e Principal activity

BENRER XY RAFHE BRERAIHL RAADHL TEER

i-Legal Service Ltd Hong Kong 5,034,962 ordinary shares 35% 35% Provision of online

i of HK$1 each legal services
5,034 9620k BRRE(E RAE DEERE
BEITE Bk

Telstra Technology Services (Hong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 25% 25% Provision of

Kong) Limited 8 of HK$1 each data centre services
1008 BRREE REHER LR
BEITE Bk

Guangdong Nanfang Haian Science & PRC RMB10,000,000 20% 20% Provision of
Technology Service Company Limited I AR®10,000,0007T e-commerce Services

BERAEFREREERAR RUEBTHERY

China International Data Systems Co., PRC RMB198,630,000 25.17% 25.17%  Provision of disaster recovery,
Ltd (“Guofurui”) (Note 16(a)) I AR #198,630,0007C business continuity services

EEhSEZRERAR (B2 RESEERR
(ffit16(a) EBRERRERS

TEHHRBERRERAR PRC RMB5,750,000 21.3% - IT related services
(DIE A ]) (Note 16(b)) FE ARE5,750,0007T ERRIEERS
(fiE16(0)

LEERRERRITEEEER AT PRC RMB18,000,000 24.5% - Supply chain management
(I HEER ) (Note 16(c)) FE AR #18,000,0007T development and services
(ffet16(c) HEREREERRE

(a) BIE% (“Guofurui”) (a) BIEH

In April 2010, the Company subscribed for a 25.17% equity interest RIZZ—ZTFNA - ARRARBEEHBIERER
in Sk EEZ5 AR AT, China International Data Systems ERAB(TEER])MW25.17% K AEZ  RE
Co., Ltd (“Guofurui”) for a cash consideration of RMB50,000,000. KRB A ARKES0,000,0007T - BEHE—REL
Guofurui is a sino-foreign equity joint venture with duration of R AI0FMFIMEERE - IERNTREER
operation of 30 years. It develops and operates data centres in China REEHEPL  BREBELHER  ELKBE
for the provision of disaster recovery, business continuity and other MEARPE I H AR E FEHRIMNAIBRTS « AEBEE R =
IT outsourcing services. In April 2011, the Group completed the fair T——F 0 AR RE R = R0 R A =T
value assessment of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as 1§27 BEMATRE 2 BEMIEL AR TETE -
part of its acquisition of equity interest in Guofurui. No goodwill was RIELAREEE 2 S RE KT - RE
recognised upon acquisition of the 25.17% equity interest based on 25.17% B E IR AR E R -

the final assessment on the accounting of the acquisition.
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16 Interest in associates (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

STERTEEL (“SCNT”)

In April 2011, the Group entered into an agreement with several
parties to subscribe for a 24.5% equity interest in ;T &x k4848 R}
BB AT (“SCNT”) for a cash consideration of RMB2,450,000.
SCNT was subsequently incorporated in June 2011. It has duration
of operation of 20 years and is engaged in IT related services. During
the year, the Group has injected RMB1,225,000 into SCNT. The
remaining investment cost is required to be injected within two years
of the company’s establishment.

FiSER (“U-Link”)

In May 2011, the Group subscribed for a 24.5% equity interest
in EBEBHEREMEEZABRAR (“U-Link”) for a cash
consideration of RMB7,350,000. The relevant amount was fully
paid up during the year. U-Link was subsequently incorporated in
July 2011. It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture with duration of
operation of 20 years and is engaged in supply chain management
development and services.

Summary of financial information on associates

16 FribBtE N R ()

(b)

(c)

STER it AR

RZE——FMNA  AEEEHRTHNFEL
M REIHERAGREERAA (NI
Wit 1) 245% R Az - REREBERARE
2,450,0007T © JTERtH R EHER T ——F XA
AL o T AR B A A & BAR B204 - I FEER
RHEAERIRTS - 7 - AEBEE MIHHAITE
AR#1,225,0007T + 88 THIIRE R ARER AT
SEMEREN °

LiEES

RZZB——F1A  AEERE LEERBMER
Rl EEE AR AR ([ LBER])24.5% KA
& ReREARARK7,350,0007T - BRAFIED
REAZEXN - EEEBERR -_T—F
AEMAKSL - BBERRE —REEHRRB20FH
IR REHERERERIRE -

(d) BEQRNUKRERBE

Assets
gE
HK$’000
BT
2011 —E——fF
100 per cent 100%
Group’s effective interest REEERER
2010 —z-2x
100 per cent 100% 363,337
Group’s effective interest REBEERER 89,229

Profit/(loss)

Liabilities Equity Revenue for the year
FEBHN,

afE &S 'ON (&18)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT BETT

(154,687)
(38,346)

(208,650)
(50,883)

105,938
24,493

(14,561)
(4,067)
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17 Other financial assets 17 HthBi & E
The Group The Company
REH N

2010 2010
T —TF —T—ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI

Non-current EFRE
Unlisted equity securities IEETRAES

—in Hong Kong, at cost — &8 IRKANE 57,500 57,500
Less: impairment B RE (57,500) (57,500)
Current B
Available-for-sale debt securities AAFERE 2 Al

at fair value B BT

— unlisted —3EET 1,523

— listed in Hong Kong —REBLH 35,415 -

— listed outside Hong Kong —REBEAIN

& 119,801 -

RZB——F+ZA=+—8B AEEZELERE
% WIEABIEEEAAMEHEERES  MALQ
FEZPREME2EREZPER  TBIREZZ A
FEEBR - CEERBIT2ERELFZEETR
AAA-ZEBBB- °

As at 31 December 2011, the Group held corporate bonds and
designated the instruments as available-for-sale debt securities with
fair value changes recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. The debt
securities are issued by corporate entities with credit rating ranging from
AA-to BBB-.
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18 Trade receivables 18 FEEWERX
Credit terms granted by the Group to customers generally range from one AEB—RETREP—EHEZ—EANEES -

week to one month.

An ageing analysis of trade receivable, based on the invoice date is as RIEEZAE - EURERIZHERROITAT ¢
follows:
The Group The Company
TEE VN

2010 2010
—ZT-TF —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

Current BNER

1 to 3 months overdue BH—@EAR
LR=1EA

More than 3 months overdue but BH=@EAR

less than 12 months Overdue LR+=EAR
The Group’s credit policy is set out in Note 24(a). REBEMEEBUREAA724(a) -
All the above balances are expected to be recovered within one year and FEEA P s a T R —EARAUWE - W—RBEIREIR
they are generally covered by customer deposits received from customers RS FTRE (EN5E19) -

(see Note 19).

19 Trade creditors, accounts payable and other payables 19 BENERM  BAREREMESIE
The Group The Company
REME b N

2010 2010
—T—TF —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT

Trade creditors (Note19(i)) FETBRIR (T2 190)) 11,958 11,958
Customer deposits received Bl EFIES

(Note 19(ii)) (Hfz£19(i)) 166,187 166,187
Accrued charges and FERTRISE R EAD

other payables FEfS3RIE 41,162 33,996
Amount due to a subsidiary ERHEB AR ZIE - 21,050

233,191

219,307
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19 Trade creditors, accounts payable and other payables 19 FE{JER S - FE{S X E R H it FE{T K18

(continued) (#&)

(i)  Trade creditors are due within 1 month or on demand. () FEFREREFR—EARNDERNEREEE -

(i) Deposits received are monies received from customers before (il BRIEZSRERFPEEFALAESENRZRGETE
they are allowed to make trade transactions through the use of the SR SGHEARPWEIRIZIE - —RERES - BET]
Group’s systems. Generally, customers are only allowed to incur NEERNZS5E  UWEFRAAEBESINNIES A
transaction charges up to the amount deposited with the Group. [R o IZERERFERTIRE -

Deposits are refundable to customers on demand.

20 Provision for long service payments 20 REIREESBE
The Group The Company
TEE b N

2010 2010
e —EFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
ki BT

As at 1 January Rn—A—H
Released/utilised R 0 =)
Provisions charged to the income RURER R
statement B

As at 31 December R+—A=+—8

21 Employee retirement benefits 21 EEERAKEF
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF AEBRB(EBRHMEATESTBIEH) - ARB(E
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes BIEBEROIVERMES - RsaslE A EeEI([54
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Baertdll) - BB EABUITATENTEMR
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution FORIRET & - IRIBEEREE - EXHESASAN
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF FFEEHASERNEEBBEAESRMHE - MEBAR
scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make K& AR LR ABE20,0007T - £EEFEI/EL#
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, HiE - HAREBIEEFE ©

subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.
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22 Equity-settled share-based transactions 22 REZEZRDRS

(a) FBmRERTE

(a) Share option schemes

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme on 2
August 2000 which was amended on 11 September 2001 and 26
November 2002 respectively, and a Post-IPO share option scheme
on 14 October 2005, whereby the Directors are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors of
any company in the Group, to take up options at consideration of
HK$1.00 per grant to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO share option scheme
can only be exercised after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%)
and 36 months (100%) respectively from the commencement of
the trading of the Company’s shares on SEHK being 28 October
2005, and have a duration of 10 years from the date on which the
grant was made. The exercise prices per share for the options are
HK$0.90 and HK$1.25.

The share options granted under the Post-IPO share option scheme
vest after 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) and 36 months
(100%) respectively from date of grant and then exercisable within
a period of 10 years. The subscription amount payable in respect of
each share upon the exercise of an option shall be determined by
the board of directors and shall be not less than the greater of:

(i) the closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated in the
SEHK’s daily quotations sheet on the date, which must be a
business day, of the written offer of such option (the “Date of
Grant”);

(ii) the average closing price of the shares on the SEHK as stated
in the SEHK’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the Date of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

On 16 March 2009, the Company adopted a “Share Award Scheme”
(Note 22(b)). The Share Option Schemes have been discontinued
and replaced by the Share Award Scheme. However, share options
previously awarded under the Share Option Schemes remain valid
and subject to the same terms and conditions.

AARNRZZZTZFEN\A ZBRMERAFBKR
RIS B (DR -T2 —FAAT+—HRZ
ZRF A TRARBE) AR -TTRF
TATHBERAERRFRBIRBRESE - %
It EEERNEEAFAREES  BEAE
EETERNIRINES  ZARRBARRRS
MR - RERESNHEBIEEKL00T - 81
WIS B ABRERBEARR —REBAK -

D= WANGEEGIE e e (Eedanl:bl dil e 3
RZZZERFT AT N\BARRRMDRIBHE
BEMTAEERGT T @A —+HEAR
=tXRMEAEK  FASRITEEF25% - 60%
K100%H9 [ty - BERE B R A R A+
F o BRETHERRMNITEE - REH0.90T
K BHE1.257C ©

RIBERAFRER BT B e B RE
ERHBEHE @A —tmEAR=TR
ER% D BIFEE25% - 60% % 100% - K&i& A
WHFERTRE - BITEBEED AR SRR
SNMRBERARREFTGET - BTEORT
I BIRF RS

(i) RBEENZEEEHER(HELEH] H
BAREER) REBBMIXMEBA®RER
F3IB%An FE & B B Z2 PRV UR T (B

(iy BRERHBAMATREEER  NEBBRAR
FHBERMIIBMOET BN T
mE &

(i) FEHOEE

RZZETAF=A+RE - ARBREMBT —ER
1D SRR BI(H22(b)) - B BIE & LI MA
W fn B2 AT BRI o EBERIRB R BRI
EBB R AR - SR ABREFR AR IRIR o
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22 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(a) Share option schemes (continued)

22 UREZEZROXR S (&)

(a) BRAETE(R)

(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the (i) TXEFIER S ARITE AR 2 &7 R 4l

year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical

delivery of shares:

R

Al Eit - TEBREARNDED S REE

Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
TEZR BERY BRENSHNER
Options granted to directors:
ERTESNERE
—on 13 December 2001 700,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RIBT—F+-A+=H and 36 months (100%) T&
from 28 October 2005
BE-ZTTRFE+A=+N\H
HBET12{8 A (25%) + 241 A (60%)
J%361E A(100%)
—on 14 October 2005 625,369 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RZZEZERF+ATHAE and 36 months (100%) T
from 28 October 2005
BE-ZTRE+AZ+/\H
HEET 1216 A (25%) * 241E A (60%)
T2 361E A (100%)
—on 19 March 2007 922,762 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RZZETLF=A+NH and 36 months (100%) +4F
from 19 March 2007
BE-TT+F=A+NA
HBEF121E A (25%) ~ 2418 A(60%)
J%361E A (100%)
—on 14 April 2008 919,144 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RZZEZENFHA+MH and 36 months (100%) +4

from 14 April 2008

BT \FMA+MA
HBEF121E A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
123618 A(100%)
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22 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 22 URREZEZRARZ (&)
(a) Share option schemes (continued) (a) MERRFEGTEI(E)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the (i) TXEFIER S ARITE AR 2 &7 R 4l
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical 8] B FTEBREAKROYED A EE
delivery of shares: (continued) R - (48)

Number of Contractual

instruments Vesting conditions life of options

TA#A BB BRENSNES

Options granted to employees:
ERFREENERE

—in 2001 1,400,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
_RomT and 36 months (100%) T
from 28 October 2005
A-2PRF A=A
FBET12{E A (25%) + 2418 A (60%)
1361 A(100%)

—in 2002 361,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
_R-TE & and 36 months (100%) TF
from 28 October 2005
BE-ZTRFE+A=+N\H
FBET12{8 A (25%) + 2418 A (60%)
F%361E A(100%)

—in 2003 160,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RZEE= and 36 months (100%) T
from 28 October 2005
BT RF+TA=Z+NAR
HBET12{8 A (25%) + 2418 A (60%)
J%361E A (100%)

—in 2004 105,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-R-TBTNF and 36 months (100%) TF
from 28 October 2005
BE-ETRF+TA=1+NAH
HBEF1218 A (25%) ~ 2418 A (60%)
T2 361E A (100%)

—on 14 October 2005 7,036,775 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
~-RZEERF+A+IA and 36 months (100%) +4
from 28 October 2005
BE-TTRF+A=TNH
HBEF121E A (25%) ~ 241 A (60%)
13618 A (100%)

—on 19 March 2007 4,029,000 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
-RZZEZT+LF=A+NH and 36 months (100%) +4
from 19 March 2007
BT+ F=A+NA
FEET12(8 A (25%) + 2418 A (60%)
13618 A(100%)
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22 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 22 URREZEZRARZ (&)
(a) Share option schemes (continued) (a) MERRFEGTEI(E)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the (i) TXEFIER S ARITE AR 2 &7 R 4l
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical 8] B FTEBREAKROYED A EE
delivery of shares: (continued) R - (48)

Number of Contractual

instruments Vesting conditions life of options

IAHAE BB BRENSNES

Options granted to employees (continued):

ERTFEENWEREE) :
—on 14 April 2008 4942 351 12 months (25%), 24 months (60%) 10 years
_RoEENENATIE and 36 months (100%) T

from 14 April 2008

BT N\FMHA+IA
FEET121E A (25%) * 2418 A (60%)
3618 A (100%)
21,201,401
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (i) FERRIEMZE RINETFITEBNT -

options are as follows:

2010
—T-TF
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
IEFIITEEE g =
HK$ 000
BT Fhx
Outstanding as at 1 January 7 — A —HE&E 1.14 32,261
Exercised during the year KEERITE 0.90 (300)
Forfeited during the year IREZ R 1.07 (10,760)
Outstanding as at R+—A=+—H
31 December H 4S8R 1.18 21,201
Exercisable as at R+=—A=+—8
31 December AI{TE 18,857
The options outstanding as at 31 December 2011 had exercise RZE——F+ZA=+—H8 ' BKRTEHE
prices ranging from HK$0.90 to HK$1.42 (2010: ranging REERTTEEN THBRE0.90 T EHE1.427T
from HK$0.90 to HK$1.42) and weighted average remaining (ZE—ZF : NTEK00TLEB1.42
contractual life ranging from 1 year to 7 years respectively (2010: T0) RN A OFRH R ARIFE
ranging from 1 year to 8 years). TE(ZE—ZF NT1IFESF) °
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22 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued) 22 RREEEZRNRRS (&)

(b) BfnEREE

(b) Share award scheme

On 16 March 2009 (“the adoption date”), the Board adopted a
Share Award Scheme (“the Scheme”) as a means of rewarding
and retaining employees at the grade of assistant manager and
above within the Group and to encourage senior employees to
have, through the award of the Company’s shares under the
Scheme, a direct financial interest in the long term success of the
Company. A Trust (“the Trustee”) has been set up for the purpose of
administering the Scheme.

The Scheme comprises two parts, Part 1 and Part 2. Under Part
1, eligible employees receive an offer to purchase the Company’s
shares (“Shares”) from the Trustee of the Scheme at discounted
prices and subject to a lock-up period as the eligible staff may
choose. Under Part 2, eligible employees received an offer to be
granted by the Trustee Shares at no consideration but subject to a
one-year lock-up period.

Dividends on those awarded shares which have already been
allocated to the existing awardees will be distributed to the awardees.
The Trustee is entitled to keep the portion of dividends declared
on those awarded shares which have not yet been allocated (or
which relate to Shares awarded to a terminated staff but for which
the terminated staff has ceased to be entitled to these Shares or
dividends on them) and in any case are held on trust for future
awardees under the Scheme. Such dividends so accumulated can
be utilised by the Trustee, subject to the written instructions of the
Company, for purchasing Shares on the market for the purposes
of the Scheme or in making other payments permitted by the trust
deed.

The Scheme is valid and effective from the adoption date until lapse
of the 10 years therefrom (or such other dates as the Board decides
to terminate the Scheme). The total number of all Shares purchased
by the Trustee under the Scheme must not be 10% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (being
77,830,605 Shares) unless the Board otherwise decides.

REZZBBAF=ZA+RB(RABH])  EFg
R T —IER A R B ([518)) - ERER R
HBRASEEIREIRRHIHA LRE 21 - I
FRBIEABRHARRMRD - HREREER
ARBZREKINEEP A ERI R - &
RAEE REIRFEBRIEF(TRFEAD °

EmMEMOEK - E—HBARE=FHS - BRIE
E—H8n  AAKRETHERARD AN
REAFEZRABEARRRG (TRH]) - X
RAARB TR ENEEHMAR - RES
—HD  AERETRES REYN  ERFT
ANABRER LR - AR —FEEHRR -

EEAR TRARRBENZBDRN 2 KEKD
RTEERE  ITXAGRREZFEBENE
REERER AR A A2 IR (SRR T 42 LR R
EEZBEMNBEANES  MELZEEETHES
REWERZ S Ik ) SRR B8 ) - WRERTER
TREA BN AR EREEUEETARE -
ZFEATIABAZE AL T X RFTARE - AR
W5 LR EIBERD - X NEFEROMAIE
MR - AR A AR EEESIFRR -

AEERMEMRERREN  EEZ AR
THEB(REEGRELILAENEMBE) K
B BRIBEGRITRE - BRIRTEAREE
BENMBERNDEETSEBRRBNERA
HAR) B B 1TAR AN 10% 3 bA E (BN77,830,605 AR AR

) e
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22 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

(b) Share award scheme (continued)

(M

(ii)

Movements in the number of awarded shares and their related
average fair value were as follows:

As at 1 January n—A—H
Vested 5
Forfeited R
Awarded piry)]
As at 31 December (Note) R+=ZA=+—AH
(B1t)
Note: As at the period end, the average fair value per share for

Part 1 and Part 2 of the Scheme are ranged from HK$0.09
to HK$0.36 and HK$1.17 respectively (2010: HK$0.09 to
HK$0.36 and HK$0.90 respectively). The average fair value
per share of the awarded shares is the cost to the Company
which is based on the closing price at the award date or at
appropriate discounts applied.

Details of the shares held for the Scheme as at 31 December
2011 are set out below:

22 DREEE 2RO S (1K)

(b) Rfn 82 EhEHEI ()
() ERRGHEREETHAFEHLHE

P -

Number of Remaining

awarded shares vesting period

BEER BB BT REE
2010
—T-THF

3,581

,399

(799,605)
(45,590)
2,416,765

0.25 year to 3.31 years

5,152,969 0.25F £3.314F
Hrat - REEK - GBI E B RE_F 22

GRFLG 2N FES 5 380,09 EE
#0367 REWK117 T (= FE—FF -
7B 73 EB0.097T 28 #0.36 7T KB #
0.907T) ° 22k 1n 2 T I-FIg R FlE
BER NG A K TE - 2
JHEITRAEZ A

(i) RZZE——F+-RA=+—H K:tilHF
MBI FEHERIINT

As at 1 January n—H—H
Purchased A

Vested il

As at 31 December wt+=-—A=+—H

During the year, the Company acquired through the Trustee
a total of 2,198,000 (2010: 8,394,000) ordinary shares of the
Company from open market at a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$2,601,000 (2010: HK$7,304,000) before
transaction costs.

FAN - ARAH

Number of
shares held for
the Scheme
HE 2]
Mk #E
2010
—T-TF

7,432,000
8,394,000
(799,605)

15,026,395

FEBERABRARETSBAA

#£2,198000 A A B EBR(ZFT—FF :

8,394,000 0% )

B SRANZRAERER

A A BE2601,000 L (ZFE—FF : B

7,304,0007T) °
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23 Capital and reserves 23 EXK#EE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EZMHAEG 22T
The reconciliation between the opening and closing of each RNEBEY REREI DRGSR 7 HEFHY
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the RIFAREREHER - KRARE LRI D HFY

consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes BERZEEFBRINWET ¢
in the Company’s individual components of equity between the

beginning and the end of the year are set out as below:

The Company NN
Shares held
for Share
Share Share Award Capital Retained
capital premium Scheme reserve profits Total
ARBRE
TERE
BRA& RAEE i)ie EXRE REER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETR BT BT BT T BT T
As at 1 January 2010 R-E-Z5—F—H 155,661 118,007 (5,389) 6,278 51,769 326,326
Dividends approved in respect of FEERHARE
the previous year (Note 12) (Hat12) - - - - (31,144) (31,144)
Issue of shares (Note 23(b)(ii)) BIIRG (H223(0)i)) 60 210 - - - 270
Equity-settled share-based RGBS E 2 R 5
transactions (Note 22) (Hiz22) - - - 912 - 912
Changes in shares held for Rk RE ESER
share award scheme i EE - - (6,710) - - (6,710)
Vesting of awarded shares RN B - - 556 (556) - -
Lapse of share options BRI R - - - (1,194) 1,194 -
Total comprehensive income for REE
the year PHMGES - - - - 64,849 64,849
Dividends declared in respect of AEEERFRENRE
the current year (Note 12) (Ha12) - - - - (19,465) (19,465)
As at 31 December 2010 and R-B-FE
1 January 2011 +=ZA=t-BR
—2——-%-8-H
Dividends approved in respect of LFEBHARE
the previous year (Note 12) (H£12)

Issue of shares (Note 23(b)(ii)
Equity-settled share-based

Fkin(az230)i)
NEEEE RN 5

transactions (Note 22) (Hi22)
Changes in shares held for B EEE AN
share award scheme Bt %8
Vesting of awarded shares @G FE
Lapse of share options FEREL
Total comprehensive income for AEE
the year 2EARGSBE
Dividends declared in respect of RAEEERERENRE
the current year (Note 12) (Hi12)

As at 31 December 2011
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23 Capital and reserves (continued) 23 BEXRKf#E(E)
(b) Share capital (b) BRA
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEERDBITRAE
2010
—E2-TF
No. of shares Amounts
BEShEZEE] Gl
‘000 HK$'000
T BT T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of BREEAH0.207T
HK$0.20 (2010: (ZB—ZF:
HK$0.20) each FE#0.207T)
Rl 1,250,000 250,000
Ordinary shares, issued ERTREE
and fully paid: ZEg
As at 1 January wW—H—H 778,306 155,661
Shares issued under RIERERAEE
share option schemes BITZRD 300 60
As at 31 December W+=-—A=+—H 778,606 155,721
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends LEREEABREIMARRZRENRE - I
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per BERARRARE LRBHE —RROHEKE—F -
share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank FIBEBRRNEARBBRTAEZER S Ea
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
(ii) Shares issued under share option schemes (i) REBRESZRTRG
During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for FR - ERERSE AERES,769,000L(=
3,940,000 (2010: 300,000) ordinary shares in the Company T —TF 0 BEE270,0007T) 2 R ETFERE
at a consideration of HK$3,769,000 (2010: HK$270,000) of fEiE - REEAQES,940,000(=F—F
which HK$788,000 (2010: HK$60,000) was credited to share £+ 300,0000% ) Ei@p% - HAAE#788,000
capital and the balance of HK$2,981,000 (2010: HK$210,000) TT(ZZE—Z4F : B160,0007T) 5T AR -
was credited to the share premium account. Capital reserve of FREEAE 2,981,000 (ZE—TF + B
HK$251,000 has been transferred correspondingly to the share 210,0007T) BIEF AR S m (B AR o B A H#ES
premium account in according with policy set out in Note 1(p)(ii). #5251,0007T EARBATAE1(p) (i) B 8B R 4R

e R (B -
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23 Capital

and reserves (continued)

(b) Share capital (continued)

(iii)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at end of
the reporting period:

23 BEXR#E (H)

(b) BRA (%)

(iii)

RIEMARRE AR AT EEREAF -

2010

kS S8

Exercise price Number

Exercise period 1TER TEE 28

20 September 2001 to —ET-FNA=TAHE HK$0.90 1,800,000
13 December 2011 —ZT——%+-A+=H #10.907T

11 September 2002 to —TTE-FNA+—HE HK$0.90 926,000
30 November 2014 —ZE-E+—A=+H 7 #0.9070

14 October 2005 to “EERF+ATHEAE HK$1.25 7,662,144
13 October 2015 —E-RF+A+=H FE#1.257T

19 March 2007 to “EEL+F=ZA+NABEE HK$1.42 4,951,762
18 March 2017 —T—tF=A+NH Bks1.427T

14 April 2008 to “EEN\FOAtTEBEE HK$1.01 5,861,495
13 April 2018 —ET-)\FMA+=AH BE1.017T

21,201,401

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options and awarded shares granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments in Note
I(p)(ii) and (iii).

Shares held for share award scheme

The Shares held for Share Award Scheme is the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
for purchase of shares under the Share Award Scheme, in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 1(p)(iii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 1(q).

(c) RENEERRAR
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23 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of available-for-sale debt securities held at the end
of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies in Note 1(i).

(d) Distributability of reserves

(e)

As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$49,798,000 (2010: HK$67,203,000). After the end of the
reporting period the directors proposed a final dividend of HK 6.1
cents per ordinary share (2010: HK 6.3 cents per share), amounting
to HK$47,735,000 (2010: HK$49,052,000). This dividend has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due for the
foreseeable future. The Group has no external borrowing at the end
of the reporting period.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed
with due regard to the capital management objectives of the Group.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

24 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk arises in the

normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are limited by the

Group’s financial management policies and practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables
and investments in debt securities. Management has a credit policy

in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

23 BXR#E(H)
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24 Financial risk management and fair values (continued) 24 eRIEREER AN FEE)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERR(ME)

When registering as a subscriber, a customer is automatically
assigned with a credit limit based on the amount of its deposit
or bank guarantee and is normally given credit periods ranging
from one day to one month. The amount of deposit is determined
on a customer-by-customer basis, depending on its usage of the
Company’s services. Generally, if a customer reaches or exceeds its
credit limit before the normal billing cycle, an ad hoc bill will be issued
to the customers for payment by bank direct debit. However, if a
customer is in default of payment for whatever reason, its account is
automatically suspended from operation until all outstanding charges
have been fully settled. For that reason, customers may also, and
often do, place deposits with the Company from time to time to cover
their charges.

There is, however, no credit policy for the Company’s ad hoc
customers who are required to pay the relevant charges (including
service charges, service centre handling fees and Government fees)
in full when using the Company over-the-counter services.

The Company does not have a general provisioning policy in respect
of trade receivables. Specific trade receivables considered not
recoverable will be written-off.

Investments in debt securities are normally in liquid securities
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, issued by corporate with
sound credit standing (Note 17). Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not have any
significant concentration of credit risk other than those arising from
investments in debt securities. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet. Except for the financial guarantee given by the
Company in respect of a revolving credit facility to an associate of the
Company as disclosed in Note 27, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
Note 18.
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24 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

(c)

All cash management of the Group, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and raising of loans, if needed, to
cover expected cash demands, are managed centrally by the
Company. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s current liabilities of
HK$230,363,000, including trade creditors, accounts payable and
other payables of HK$224,512,000 as indicated in Note 19, were
due to be repaid during the next financial year or repayable upon
demand. The Group will address the short-term liquidity requirement
inherent in this contractual maturity date with internal resources.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from investments
in fixed income debt securities (Note 17) and floating rate bank
balances, which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits by approximately HK$992,000 (2010:
HK$1,157,000). The fair value reserve in the consolidated equity
would have decreased/increased by approximately HK$3,735,000
(2010: HK$6,355,000) in response to the general increase/decrease
in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those fixed income debt
securities held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In respect of
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
bank balances held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2010 for cash flow interest rate risk.
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24 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(e)

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
available-for-sale debt securities denominated in United States
dollars and Renminbi, and investments in PRC incorporated entities.
Given the fact that the exchange rates of United States dollars and
Hong Kong dollars are currently pegged, management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated
with the investment in available-for-sale debt securities. The
Group has not hedged the foreign exchange exposure in relation
to its investments in PRC incorporated entities and Renminbi
denominated debt securities.

Fair values

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
require disclosures relating to fair value measurements of financial
instruments across three levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The
fair value of each financial instrument is categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

e |evel 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

e |evel 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

e |evel 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation
techniques in which any significant input is not based on
observable market data

At 31 December 2011, the available-for-sale debt securities held
by the Group are carried at their fair value (see Note 17). These
instruments fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy described
above.

All other financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2011
and 2010.
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25 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

(b)

(M

(ii)

Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2011
not provided for in the financial statements amounted to
HK$470,000 (2010: HK$699,000). They are mainly in respect
of the Group’s platform hardware, software and computer
equipment.

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with
strategic business partners to subscribe for a 24.5% equity
interest in JTER R AL BIZBR AR (“SCNT”) for a
cash consideration of RMB2,450,000. As at 31 December
2011, the Group’s outstanding commitment in respect of
capital contribution to SCNT not provided for in the financial
statements amounts to RMB1,225,000.

Operating leases
The total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of property rentals are payable as follows:

25 &iE

(a) BEXEE

(i)

(ii)

(b)
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BB E A AYEY ABI5470,0007T (= F —
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RERE
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SHEBMT

2010
—ET-FF
HK$'000
BT T

Within one year
More than one year but within five years

—FRQ
—FRIELFA

949
624

1,573

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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26 Material related party transactions

During the year, transactions with the following parties are considered as
related party transactions.

26 EXBEALRS

RAFEE  BUATALTETZRZIWRA/MEALR
5 o

Name of party
BEALERE

Relationship
&

Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”)

A AREE (MR ARRER])

Telstra Technology Services (Hong Kong) Limited (“TTS”)

TER TR AR AR ("SCNT”) ( TR )

Shareholder of the Company
RAFIRRER

Associate
NG

Associate
/NG

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions.

(a) Recurring transactions

BRI ISR A T BN 5 R ARSI - A
SEBETHERBEALRSAT »

(a) BREETHRS

2010
—E-FF
HK$'000
BT
Facilities management expenses B ERNTTS 2 540
paid/payable to TTS EEE 10,644
Counter collection service charge B ERAT 2 B Ui
paid/payable to the Government AR & 350
ROCARS call centre service charge received/ 2 e T 2 ROCARS & 3%
receivable from the Government EHPORISE 210

The Government holds approximately 12.23% of the Company’s
issued share capital in the name of FSI. Accordingly, the
Government is a shareholder of the Group. Transactions between the
Group and the Government departments or agencies of FSI, other
than those transactions that arise in the normal dealings between
the Government and the Group (such as payments of taxes, leases,
rates, etc), are considered to be related party transactions.
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26 Material related party transactions (continued) 26 EXBEEALTRS ()
(a) Recurring transactions (continued) (a) REETHRZ (&)
Material related party transactions entered into by the Group include: AREFOBKETTMEAEEATRZ SO
(i)  On 30 December 2008, the Company entered into a contract (i) R-ZBEZNF+-A=+H  KAFHEKHT
with the Government to provide front-end GETS services in RIM—MEH BT —TFE-T—RF
relation to import and export declarations, dutiable commodities AR F - IRHAEBEL O®RE - ERE
permit, cargo manifests in respect of cargoes carried by air, MErAEREBNE - HRIUKBHEDRE
rail or water, Certificate of Origin and Production Notification B EMRRBERAEERANZEMIMGETS
for a term of 7 years from 2010 to 2016 (“GETS Il Contract”). BR7%([GETS 1 41)) - TEBUTH BB B 151
Subject to the sole discretion of the Government, the GETS I HBRT - AIBGETS IEK T —IES A L
Contract shall be extendable for one or more GETS services HIGETSIRGFHRIER TNEBBMNF - BFE
with a period not more than two years. The Government paid MAEBR B R 2GR R IEEETR
the Group a nominal price of HK$1 in return for the Group % MAKEZ BB LITHERERRE -

performing the services in accordance with the terms and
conditions set out in the contract.

The GETS Il Contract included an arrangement whereby the GETS & 4B 3E—ELH - Bk - ANEEA
Group is required to collect Government fees and charges on MERESRNETESEEXFRAE
behalf of the Government in relation to certain trade-related EIRHMGETSARE « RRBUFKEUBT &
documents to which each such agreement related and in BREE - AR WEATENERRWE -
respect of which the Group provides GETS Services. These AR T —EATIERE BT -

fees and charges collected from customers are paid over to the
Government within the next working day.

On 30 June 2009, the Company entered into an agreement RIBZAFENA=Z1TH » KRR EBRFT
with the Government for the provision of front-end GETS service RN BABEEE T RIERIIGS
in relation to the Textiles Trader Registration Scheme for a GETSHRTS - W A+ /@A - K=F—
term of 18 months from 1 January 2010 to 30 June 2011, for TFE—A—BABER-_Z—FXA=1
a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the Government. Subject to HiEm B E R AEBLITHEER
the sole discretion of the Government, the agreement shall B - FRFNEBRBERET aJE—%
be further extendable for no more than 9 months. By a letter EEERTHBANER - ZRAHA-Z
of renewal dated 3 June 2011, the agreement was renewed ——EXAZHNERRN  ZWEETEE
for a further 42 months from 1 July 2011 to 31 December M+—@R  R-ZT——F+A—BLEUR
2014, for a nominal price of HK$1 paid by the Government. RZZE—NF+—A=+—HE" ' BFE
The agreement may be renewed for a further period by the BT ABELITHEERE - BIRAR
Government and the Company on such terms and conditions AIRE R EERENER RGN E—F%

that the parties may agree in writing. iR F TR -
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26 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Recurring transactions (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

On 12 April 2002, the Company entered into an agreement with
TTS for the provision of system management services such as
computing services, system security and other related services
at HK$640,000 per month for an initial period of eight years.
Subsequently, on 16 January 2003, the Company entered
into a price adjustment agreement with TTS for the provision
of services at HK$651,600 per month commencing on 1
January 2004. The agreement was further extended for a 3-year
period, commencing on 6 September 2010 and expiring on
5 September 2013, with the fee adjusted to HK$550,000 per
month commencing on 6 September 2010.

On 10 December 2004, Digital Trade and Transportation
Network Limited entered into an agreement with TTS for
the provision of system management services such as
computing services, system security and other related
services at HK$248,333 per month for an initial period of
eight years commencing on 1 January 2005. With subsequent
adjustments, the monthly fee was adjusted to HK$208,000.
Upon completion of the overall Tradelink/DTTN migration in
mid 2010, Tradelink has taken up DTTNCo'’s obligations under
the signed maintenance agreement.

On 8 November 2004, Digi-Sign Certification Services Limited
entered into an agreement with TTS for the provision of data
centre environment management services at HK$37,000
per month for an initial period of five years commencing on
1 December 2004. Commencing on 1 December 2009, the
agreement was extended to 31 December 2010 and the fee
was adjusted to HK$47,000 per month. The agreement was
further extended to 31 December 2011 with fee adjusted to
HK$25,000 per month since 1 January 2011.

On 16 December 2011 the Group renewed a licence agreement
with the Government (as represented by the Commissioner for
Census and Statistics) under which the Group was granted a
licence to use the 2012 version of the Hong Kong Harmonised
System codes and descriptions (“HKHS”) for provision of the
GETS services. The licence agreement is of a thirteen-month’s
duration, and the Group paid HK$23,750 to the Government
for the licence.

26 EXBEALXRZ (&)
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(ii)

(iii)

“TETHFNA+TZH - ARABETTSEIZ
BRREASRER RS (PINERMRYE - R
SRz R EMERERE) MHE - 5 N\FH
1E(E RS BE640,0007T - Hik - RZF
T=F—RA+RE AREETTSFIZE#
RGO ERBERS - B —TTMF—A—
it - RERT AEKE51,6007T © ZiRE
HEBER=F #-_Z—ZFNAKA
ERE_T-=FNARARER LB
Z-ZEFNARNAREABKEEFAEE
550,0007T °

RZZETNF+ZA+AH BIGESERE
BERARETTSEI B BIRHEREERR
B(HINEIRT - ERRETREMEBRR
BINGE R TERE B - BREHE
J\FEVEES AE%248,33370 kB 1EHT
B §RAKEBAREHE208,0005T - K=
T-TFHREREHB DITNEHE - &
SBEREHRE S EGRBERATRE
BUMMEEHEB T 2ET -

RZZZEMFE+—ANR  ETZERLEE
IRARIBETTSA MR EE R OIREEER
B R-TTMF+-A—RAEstE
HEHEEBATABIES7000T - -2F
NFE+=ZA—B ZWBLERE-ZT—F
FH+_A=T-BUABKEEZGAEE
47,0007 - ZWEHEBCRE-T—F
+=ZA=+—8 E¥A=T——F—A—H
HARWEES AB25,0007T

RZZB——F+ZA+XA  AEEEKFT
(HBRSREEERR) EEFHE -
Bt AEEERERFEEHAGNE(ZF
— T ARAN) (THKHS 1) R 5% Je i it 40 %55 37
B AMERHGETSIRIS o Fratia A %8
T=EA - MAKEEHRZFERBRFX
{7&#23,7507T ©




106

Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited EZBETE S ER A A

Notes to the Financial Statements B} #&3R3%Mist

26 Material related party transactions (continued)

(a) Recurring transactions (continued)
(iv) On 17 December 2008, the Company entered into the Road

(v)

Cargo System (“ROCARS”) Contract (“the Contract”) with the
Government pursuant to which the Company agreed to set up
a call centre and provide call services for the implementation
of the ROCARS of the Customs and Excise Department of the
Government. The Contract terms is five years commencing
from the production rollout of the ROCARS originally scheduled
for September 2009. Subsequently, the Government revised
the rollout date of the ROCARS call centre services to January
2010. Pursuant to the Contract, the Government paid
HK$2,542,000 to the Company for setting up the call centre.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
generated revenue of HK$1,445,900 for calls received (2010:
HK$210,000).

On 22 September 2010, the Company entered into a contract
with the Government (as represented by the Postmaster
General) pursuant to which the Government agreed to provide
counter collection service at designated post offices to facilitate
traders without the capability to submit trade documentation to
the Government in electronic form to hand in trade declarations
in paper documents for data conversion and submission
(“Counter Collection Service Agreement”). According to the
Counter Collection Service Agreement, Tradelink agreed to
pay the Government a monthly service charge on the basis
of the number of paper documents processed, subject to

a guaranteed minimum, during the three-year term of the
Agreement. During the year ended 31 December 2011,
Tradelink incurred HK$2,324,000 (2010: HK$350,000) to the
Government for the counter collection service.

26 EXBEALXRZ (B

() KRETHRZ ()
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RIS BRE EMER R G (TROCARS DA
(B8] Bt - RAFRRBRLEBFEEN
HO R sk B AU B RS E i 2 ROCARSHR
BREEHAPORYE - AHZHRERERS
TENFNAFKREIEROCARSHEST - AHA
FEE - Hi% o BFBROCARSE & H 0
REHELBBRETAZT—ZTF—H 1R
BAY BARKUEFESHFPLAER
Al S7E#E2,542,0000T c HEZT——F
+ZA=+—BILFE - ARRIERATER
HE D TR A SR 1,445,900 (=%
—Z 4 ¢ #H210,0007T) °

R-ZZ—TFNA=-+=H  AQRHEBF
(HEBBHERARR)FTL-EEH &
It B REEREERNED - IREER Ut
IR « B — LR EBRENAEFR R
REGXMHTHRNOESE - #REEREST
HiEEn - RMEE2X PR (TERKER
BEH]) - REBEERKGEREEL  E5E
Rl EARBATERIEM B MBA A
B WMREAN=-FHEGTERRRZE -
HE-" T+ _-_A=+—HIL=EE "
B 5 i b 18 6 U 14 AR 7% 0 78 17 BT 32 4+
#2,324,00050( —Z—2Z4 : E350,000
7T e




Annual Report 2011 —Z——4F 4K 107

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf7& 3R st

26 Material related party transactions (continued) 26 EXEEALTRS ()
(b) Amounts due from/(to) related parties (b) FEUR(FEF)BIEANLTRIE
2010
—T-THF
HK$'000
BT T
Government (Note 26(b)(i)) B (BfaE26(0)0)) (10,134)
TTS (Note 26(b)(if)) TTS(H3£26(b) (i) (364)
SCNT (Note 26(b)(iii)) TLERE R (BFT26(b) (i) -
(10,498)
(i)  Amount due to Government represents transactions fees () FERTBUTSRIE A BUT YR B R IEE —
collected on their behalf and payable on the next working BETERSNBFNRSE R KEMENF
day and other expenses payable, netting-off receivable from % - W EHIBRROCARSIRTE #Y fE UL Z0IE o
ROCARS services.
(i)  Amount due to TTS is unsecured, non-interest bearing and (i EFRTTSHFIEAEER £ EREAREXK
repayable on demand. RR(EIE o
(i) Amount due to SCNT represents the sale of a DTTN gateway to (i) FERDIER A FRIES R F R ) LAkt pk
SCNT during the year. EDTTN gateway °
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) TEEBEAENEE
Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts NTREZEZEEBEAENHE - REREBHZIH
paid to the Company’s executive directors as disclosed in Note 9 and BERARTNITEE I MNORIERIBREA IO
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 10, is as HERMETH= RS TRIFE
follows:
2010
—ET-TF
HK$'000
BT T
Short-term employee benefits REEERET 10,443
Post-employment benefits B2 R EET €0
Equity compensation benefits IRAHERF 354
10,857
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 6(a)). Bl 4zEET Al 1B BRRAN | (R HY7T6(a))
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27 Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

(c)

In January 2003, the Group provided a bank guarantee amounting
to HK$1,170,000, in respect of a revolving credit facility granted
to TTS. The guarantee is a continuing security and shall not be
released or discharged until the expiration of six months after the
payment, discharge or satisfaction in full of the guaranteed liability.

Pursuant to the terms of the GETS Il Contract, the Group provided
a bank guarantee in the amount of HK$2,120,000 from a bank as
the guarantee to the Government for the due performance of GETS Il
Contract by the Group. The bank guarantee bears commission rate
of 0.95% per annum for each renewal and is secured by a charge
over deposit in the amount of HK$2,120,000. The facility is subject
to review by 15 November 2012.

Pursuant to the terms of the ROCARS contract, the Group provided
a performance bond in the amount of HK$569,986 from a bank
as the guarantee to the Government for the due performance of
ROCARS contract by the Group. The performance bond line facility
bears commission rate of 0.95% per annum for each renewal and
is secured by a charge over deposit in the amount of HK$569,986.
The facility is subject to review by 15 November 2012.

28 Non-adjusting events after the reporting period

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK 6.1 cents per share (2010: HK 6.3 cents per share) for
the year ended 31 December 2011, amounting to HK$47,735,000 (2010:
HK$49,052,000). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at
the end of the reporting period.

27 EEE

(@) R-ZBZ=F—1 ARERTTSERNBRE
ERERME]L170,0007THIRITHER © ZER
BEEIER  REREEEZ BN - BRI
BA71& RINME A RIS R SRR -

(b) RIEGETS IEHZ &K - AEEZERBITGETS
& D EBFRMRE —RBITRORITREBEE
2,120,000 7T R ¥R © IRITEREEIRGFM
©*0.95%H - ZHLAB2,120,0007T1F KA
RERER - ZEREESN -_T——F+—A8
THBERME -

(c) RIZROCARSEMN G » AEERZERTT
ROCARSE WABAF I R B — K IRITHOBAIR
FHBHE569,980TLIERER - BOREREIRET
FREE0.95%H - HLAEED69,9867T1F K
WIRCIERIER - ZEERESR T ——F
+—A+R BRI -

28 HEMARRARREZER

RBERRER  EFHRBE—_ZT——F+=A
=St -HEFERERBEER6IEW(ZT—F
F : GRE3BA) - HEEEA7,735,000T(ZE—F
¢ B1549,0562,0007T) ° ZA SRR E BRI AR
REE-
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29 Possible impact of amendments, new standards and 29 BZE_—_E——S+-A=+—HLWE
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the annual EestiiEemmERENRZIET - #
accounting period ended 31 December 2011 BENRRBAREEENZE

HERMBRETIEAS  SEEHDAGDANS
BETRREFLER - ARSI R EARTE
ST —F A=t B I FERRER - IR

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and five new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2011 and which have not

been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

AFIEHF AR o AP T HI5IRR] LA K BIRR -

which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RIS B EZRBRN

BiTHBEXR

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial (EEAEER)) F152185T 1 July 2012
statements — Presentation of items of other — [MBH®R2Z2Y—HEitbEmE —ZE-—F+HA—H

comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and

joint ventures

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

W B 2 251 ]

(ERMHHREER) F105%
— [aiiEmE]

(BEEMBREER) F115%
— [Ba%HE]

(EEBMBREER) F125%
— [REMERE a2 W]

(ERHBREEA) F135
— [AF{EH )

(EAERHERD F275%
— [BuMismE] (ZF——%)

(BEE

SHER) 285
— [BEA

NRIRABREZNE ]

(BEY

BIREEN) B
—[EBTA

J

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2015
—E-hF—HA—AH

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application.

So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have

a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

AR BB LS AT TAT 1 - TE L B A
BN EEENYE -

ESFHNERTRBZFETNELEL XTI
HARENEEEERTBRRBRETERTE -




=] PR ]

110 Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited &

Five-Year Financial Summary HE B E

Results
(vear ended 31 December)

ES
(Bz+=-H=+—H
IHFEE)

Turnover =
Profit from operations KR
Share of results of associates {7 %4
Gain on partial disposal of an i &HE QA E]ZD
associate gt ol
Profit before taxation R 5 AT e )
Taxation 1|
Profit for the year N [ 5 R
Attributable to: AT AL -
Equity shareholders of the AATREREE A
Company
Non-controlling interests IR
Profit for the year AF A
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
(as at 31 December) (R+=ZA=+—H)
Total non-current assets IEmEEELRE
Total current assets MEEERRE
Total assets wEE
Total non-current liabilities ERE e EeE
Total current liabilities brEU=RER L)
Total liabilities waRE
Net assets BEFE

2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-TF -TThE "TEN\FE -ITTtE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BT BT BT
216,001 199,225 232,605 245,082
85,581 58,598 110,199 120,144
(3,989) (2,037) (22,222) (23,955)

- - - 345
81,592 56,561 87,977 96,534
(12,333) (11,529) (16,850) (20,330)
69,259 45,032 71,127 76,204
69,259 45,111 71,115 76,204
- (79) 12 -
69,259 45,032 71,127 76,204
147,432 98,634 89,484 93,193
414,937 451,160 472,760 475,403
562,369 549,794 562,244 568,596
(6,431) (2,977) (3,000) (3,127)
(219,657) (223,963) (222,484) (225,621)
(226,088) (226,940) (225,484) (228,748)
336,281 322,854 336,760 339,848




Annual Report 2011 —ZE——%FF®H 111

Investor Relations %% &%

The Company encourages two-way communication with both its institutional
and individual investors. Extensive information about the Company’s activities
is provided in the Annual Report. There is regular communication with
institutional and individual investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters
relating to their shareholdings and the business of the Company are welcome
and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Financial Calendar
Closure of Register of Members 24-25 May 2012

2012 Annual General Meeting 18 May 2012

Annual Dividend Payment Date On or about 1 June 2012

Listings
The Company’s shares have been listed on Main Board of The Stock of
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 28 October 2005.

Annual Report 2011
This Annual Report 2011, in both English and Chinese, is now available in
printed form and on the Company’s website at www.tradelink.com.hk.

Stock Code
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — 00536

Company Secretary
Mr. LI Fuk Kuen, Wilfred

Registered Office

11/F & 12/F, Tower B
Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone: +852 2599 1600
Fax: +852 2506 0188

ARF—ESHEEREREAREEFRERRE - AR
FIRBNFREMTIBRER - AR R EHEEE R EAR
BEEBB - ARALTREABEAFBREARREBES
B BUDEARREE - ARRHERRIBHFEEY -

B B &
S AR 1B B —T—=fF
AA-tWBEZ=+HHA
—E-FRRBFRE —E——fF
HA+NR

FEBBIKE R —E-FRA- RN

Lt
ARFRHE-TTRE+A+\BREEEYA TR
BRAFEIR L -

—%— 5%
th Z T ——FFRAP ERAEE EDRIA - IRAIRAR
A A b www. tradelink.com.hk T & °

BADER
EEBA R SHARAT 00536

DRAWE
TR

EERE Y A
ERER

FEA B35
Bathh

BAE112 1218

B ¢ +852 2599 1600
{7 : +852 2506 0188
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Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2862 8628

Fax: +852 2865 0990

Investor Relations

Ms. HO Yee Ling, Sandra

Assistant Manager (Investor Relations and Corporate Communications)
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited

11/F & 12/F, Tower B, Regent Centre

63 Wo Yi Hop Road

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong

Telephone: +852 2161 4370

Fax: +852 2506 0188

Email: sandra.ho@tradelink.com.hk

Website

www.tradelink.com.hk

In case of inconsistence between the English and Chinese versions, the English
version shall prevail to the extent of such inconsistency.

RBFZEE
EBPRESELARDF
BB
SRAER183%E
AR
17121712E1716%

T35 : +852 2862 8628
{EH : +852 2865 0990

REEBRR

fa 428/ )\E

BRI (IR B H BRI S E AL E0)
BH5RETESHERAR

BEEE

MEEIE635%
BRTUBEIERI2E

FiE 0 +852 2161 4370

{BH : +852 2506 0188

E# : sandra.ho@tradelink.com.hk

bl

www.tradelink.com.hk

R iR 2 U BB SRS+ AN 338 2 BE A S SRR A

@ This annual report is printed on enviromental friendly paper 7~ 4F #} LA IR (R 4% 5 EN &Y
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Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited

11/F & 12/F, Tower B, Regent Centre,
63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Sales Hotline: 2599 1700 Fax: 2506 0188
Corporate Website: www.tradelink.com.hk Business Portal: www.tradelink-ebiz.com
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BAXREMNEASECIFERT OBELLK12IZ
e 0 2599 1700 EHE : 2506 0188
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